
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY AUGUST 16, 2022 
 
 
7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
   
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes: 

 
a. July 19, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
b. August 2, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes (For Information Only) 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING:  Russel Gilberg (Applicant) and David Vandeneinde (Owner) 

requests that the City consider the following action for the property located at 840 Wild Oak 
Trail, Independence, MN (PID No. 27-118-24-33-0003): 

 
a. A conditional use permit to allow a ground mounted solar array on the subject 

property.   
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING:  John Peterson (Applicant) and Jean P & A Sterner Etal (Owner) 

requests that the City consider the following action for the properties generally located at 
8910 US Hwy 12, Independence, MN (PID No’s. 07-118-24-41-0003 and 07-118-24-42-
0004): 

 
a. A minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement which would adjust the line 

that separates the two properties.   
 
6. Open/Misc. 
 
7. Adjourn. 



 

City of Independence   1 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY JULY 19, 2022 
 
 
7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Pursuant	to	due	call	and	notice	thereof,	a	regular	meeting	of	the	Independence	Planning	Commission	was	
called	to	order	by	Gardner	at	7:30	p.m. 

   
2. ROLL CALL:	

 
PRESENT:  Commissioners Volkenant, Gardner, Dumas, Tearse, Thompson, Story, & Usset 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas and City Administrator Assistant Simon 
ABSENT: None  
VISITORS: See Sign-in Sheet 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

a. June 21, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
b. July 5, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes (For Information Only) 

 
Motion by Thompson to approve the June 21, 2022, Planning Commission minutes, second by 
Story. Ayes: Volkenant, Gardner, Dumas, Tearse, Thompson, Story, & Usset. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion Approved. 

 
4. TO BE TABLED TO AUGUST 16 - PUBLIC HEARING: Jon Dailing/Windsong Farm Golf Club 

(Applicant) and David Meyer (Owner) are requesting the following action for the property generally 
located at and adjacent to 8590 County Road 92 N (PID No.s 32-118-24-23-0001, 32-118-24-22-0003, 
32-118-24-22-0002, 32-118-24-13-0002, 32-118-24-12-0003 and 32-118-24-12-0004) in the City of 
Independence, MN: 

 
a. Conditional use permit amendment to allow the development of a new 18-hole golf course and 

associated site improvements on the subject properties.    
 

 
Kaltsas recommended tabling this until the August 16th Planning Commission meeting as they are working 
on a couple items – needing feedback from wetlands and it’s taking longer than expected.  

 
Motion	by	Thompson	to	table	CUP	request,	second	by	Volkenant.	Ayes:	Volkenant, Gardner, 
Dumas, Tearse, Thompson, Story, & Usset.	Nays:	None.	Absent:	None.	Abstain:	None.	Motion	
Approved. 

 
 



 

City of Independence   2 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

5. PUBLIC HEARING:  Charles Wiemerslage (Applicant) and Steve Bohl (Owner) requests that the City 
consider the following actions for the properties generally located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, 
Independence, MN (PID No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24-118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-0012): 
 

a. A comprehensive plan amendment to allow the subject property to be re-guided to a new 
residential zoning district with standards to be determined. 

b. An ordinance amendment to allow planned unit developments as a conditional use in the Rural 
Residential Zoning District. 

c. Rezoning of the property to Rural Residential. 
d. A conditional use permit to allow a planned unit development. 
e. A preliminary plat for the proposed subdivision of the property into 28 single-family lots with a 

minimum lot size of 1 acre. 
 

Request: 
Charles Wiemerslage and Steve Bohl – BohLand Development (Applicant) and Clifford 
L. Otten Trust (Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for the 
properties generally located at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID 
No’s. 24-118-24-14-0005, 24- 118-24-11-0009 and 24-118-24-11-0012): 

 
a. A	comprehensive	plan	amendment	to	allow	the	subject	property	to	be	

re-guided	to	a	new	residential	zoning	district	with	standards	to	be	
determined.	

b. An	ordinance	amendment	to	allow	planned	unit	developments	as	a	
conditional	use	in	the	Rural	Residential	Zoning	District.	

c. Rezoning	of	the	property	to	Rural	Residential.	
d. A	conditional	use	permit	to	allow	a	planned	unit	development.	
e. A	preliminary	plat	for	the	proposed	subdivision	of	the	property	into	28	

single-family	lots	with	a	minimum	lot	size	of	1	acre.	
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the north side of Perkinsville Road and in-between South Lake 
Shore Drive and County Road 19. The property has frontage on Lake Independence and is 
comprised primarily of agriculture land. There are two homes on the subject property along 
with several detached accessory buildings. The property is comprised of densely wooded 
areas, wetlands and tillable acreage. 
 
Property Information: 2236 South Lake Shore Drive 
Zoning: Agriculture (S-Shoreland Overlay) 
Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 

Acreage: ~48 acres 
 
Discussion: 
The City has reviewed and considered several concept plans for this property dating back 



 

City of Independence   3 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

to 2018. The initial concept plan submitted to the City was for a 96-unit subdivision. In 
2020 a revised concept plan was submitted for a 28-unit subdivision. It was noted at that 
time that the City needed to finalize the Comprehensive Plan prior to considering any 
additional action on this property. The Comprehensive Plan is nearing completion and 
the City has received an application for a preliminary plat and associated actions relating 
to a new development on this property. Any consideration by the City relating to this 
application would be subject to finalization and approval of the City’s 2040 
Comprehensive and approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to allow the 
development of this property. 

 
Comprehensive Plan 
The City’s adopted 2030 and Council Approved 2040 Plan (waiting for final 
Metropolitan Council approval) identifies this property as Rural Residential with 
limited sewer service. The Rural Residential designation allows for a general 
development density of 1 unit per 5 acres. 
The portion of the property that is located within the Shoreland Overlay zoning district 
could potentially be developed in accordance with the requisite shoreland standards. 
These standards generally allow for property within the shoreland overlay (1,000 feet 
from the OHWL) to be developed as one (1) acre lots if provided with City sewer. The 
City has noted that the property is currently served by the existing sanitary sewer which 
runs along two sides of the property (South Lake Shore and Perkinsville Road). 

 
Proposed Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 

 

The applicant has prepared a preliminary plat and associated plans for review by the 
City. The City has reviewed the plans and provided detailed comments and feedback to 
the applicant. The current guided designation would allow this property to be rezoned to 
Rural Residential with a portion of the property falling under the S-Shoreland Overlay 
(all property within 1,000 feet of the OHWL of Lake Independence). There are 
approximately 26 acres located within the area governed by the S-Shoreland Overlay. 
The number of lots that this area would yield is likely between 18-22 lots given the 
lakeshore, existing topography and configuration of the property covered by the overlay 
district. For the remaining 22 acres the number of lots that could be developed would be 
governed by the Rural Residential standards shown below. 22 acres could yield 4-5 lots 
depending on the exact acreage of the remaining land outside of the shoreland overlay 
area. The total number of lots that could be realized on this property utilizing the current 
zoning standards is estimated to be between 20-25. 

 
The City reviewed the existing sewer system and met with the Metropolitan Council and 
the City of Medina relating to the possibility of developing this property. The relatively 
low density (less than 3 units per acre) of the proposed subdivision does present a challenge 
to gaining approval by the Metropolitan Council. Review of the City’s sanitary sewer 
system identified the capacity to service the proposed subdivision. The City has identified 
several upgrades and system improvements that will be necessary for this development to 
occur. 

 



 

City of Independence   4 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

The City also completed a traffic analysis pertaining to the potential impacts of the 
development of the property based on a 96-unit development. Generally, the traffic 
analysis found that there was capacity on CSAH 29 and Perkinsville Road to accommodate 
development of this parcel. Any development of this property would have potential traffic 
impacts to Perkinsville Road and County Road 29. The City has limited ability to require 
off-site improvements due to the current restrictions relating to impact fees. The City has 
continued to discuss possible improvements to the intersection of CSAH 19 and 
Perkinsville Road with Hennepin County along with trying to identify additional funding 
sources. 

 
The City completed a detailed review of the proposed development and provided detailed 
comments to the applicant (see attached letter) as follows: 

 
1. The	proposed	layout	shows	that	those	lots	with	direct	shoreland	would	be	

developed	so	that	the	homes	could	be	located	at	the	top	of	the	existing	
slope.	This	configuration	is	preferable	due	to	the	existing	vegetation	and	
slopes	moving	from	south	to	north.	

 
2. The	surrounding	area	has	a	mixture	of	lot	types,	sizes	and	densities.	A	quick	

analysis	of	the	approximately	21	surrounding	(abutting)	properties	
indicates	that	the	average	lot	size	is	close	to	1.5	acres	with	the	smallest	
property	being	0.2	acres.	The	nearby	properties	located	on	Lake	
Independence	(within	1,000	feet	of	the	subject	property)	also	range	in	size	
with	the	average	lots	size	being	approximately	0.5	acres.	The	approximate	
net	density	of	the	abutting	properties	is	approximately	.75	units	per	acre.	

 
3. The	proposed	development	would	preserve	a	buffer	and	open	space	area	

along	Perkinsville	and	South	Lake	Shore	Drive.	This	area	is	proposed	to	be	
planted	to	help	screen	the	proposed	development	from	the	surrounding	
properties.	The	applicant	has	noted	that	they	are	in	the	process	of	
preparing	a	landscape	plan	for	further	consideration.	

 
4. The	subject	property	has	a	significant	natural	feature	that	consists	of	a	

wooded	“ravine”	that	runs	from	west	to	southeast	through	the	northern	
portion	of	the	property.	The	proposed	plans	have	identified	this	area	and	
show	that	a	significant	portion	of	this	area	can	be	preserved.	It	is	noted	that	
the	applicant	is	willing	to	consider	placing	an	easement	over	the	portion	of	
this	area	that	can	be	preserved	to	ensure	its	long	term	protection.	

 
5. A	 portion	 of	 the	 proposed	 property	 is	 located	 within	 1,000	 feet	 of	 Lake	

Independence	and	 is	 therefore	 within	 the	 Shoreland	 Overlay	 District.	 This	
plan	will	be	subject	to	the	review	of	the	Department	of	Natural	Resources.	

 
6. This	plan	will	be	subject	to	the	review	of	the	Pioneer	Sarah	Creek	

Watershed	Commission.	
 

7. The	plan	 indicates	all	 lots	will	be	connected	to	City	sewer.	This	property	 is	



 

City of Independence   5 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

guided	 by	 the	 City’s	 Comprehensive	 Plan	 for	 RR-Rural	 Residential	 and	
currently	has	2	sewer	connections.	In	order	for	the	City	to	consider	connection	to	
the	City	sewer,	a	Comprehensive	Plan	Amendment	will	be	required.	In	additional	to	
the	comprehensive	plan	amendment,	the	City’s	sanitary	sewer	is	routed	through	the	
City	of	Medina	and	permitted	through	the	Quad	City	Agreement.	An	amendment	to	
that	agreement	will	be	necessary	in	order	to	serve	this	property	with	sewer.	

 
8. Additional	comments	relating	to	potential	lift	station	upgrades,	grading,	road	

construction	and	infrastructure	will	be	provided	in	a	separate	letter	from	the	
City’s	engineer.	

 
9. The	proposed	concept	plan	indicates	six	lots	with	riparian	access	(frontage	

or	access)	on	Lake	Independence.	Any	lot	directly	abutting	the	lake	would	
need	to	comply	with	applicable	shoreland	overlay	standards.	The	shoreland	
overlay	requires	a	minimum	lot	size	of	1	acre	and	a	minimum	shoreland	lot	
width	of	100	linear	feet.	The	subject	property	has	approximately	700	linear	
feet	of	shoreline	on	Lake	Independence.	Additional	review	relating	to	slopes,	
bluffs	and	general	grading	of	the	proposed	riparian	lots	would	be	required	if	
the	develop	moves	forward.	

 
10. It	is	noted	that	there	is	a	30-foot-wide	strip	of	land	that	borders	Lake	

Independence	along	Maple	Drive.	The	proposed	use	of	this	land	as	a	
common	HOA	element	with	a	dock	and	boat	slips	will	need	to	be	further	
discussed	and	reviewed	by	the	City.	The	narrative	provided	indicates	that	
there	would	be	a	dock	and	4	boat	slips	that	could	be	used	by	residents	of	the	
development	during	the	day.	During	previous	public	comment	and	review	of	
this	development,	there	were	concerns	expressed	related	to	the	intensity	of	
having	additional	boats	and	users	in	this	area.	

 
11. The	City	does	not	have	applicable	zoning	for	this	type	of	sewered	residential	

development.	It	is	proposed	that	the	City’s	Rural	Residential	zoning	
ordinance	be	amended	to	allow	a	Planned	Unit	Development	(PUD)	in	the	
Rural	Residential	zoning	district.	The	City	will	need	to	adopt	physical	lot	
standards	associated	with	the	PUD.	If	a	PUD	is	adopted,	it	is	recommended	
that	the	riparian	lakeshore	lots	be	required	to	comply	with	applicable	
shoreland	district	standards.	The	City	is	recommending	the	following	
additional	lot	standards:	

 
Minimum lot size: 1 acre (43,560 SF) 
Minimum lot width: 100 feet at right of 
way line 
Front yard setback: 35 feet from right of 
way line Side yard setback: 15 feet 
Corner yard setback: 35 feet 
Rear yard setback: 40 feet 
Shoreland setback: 100 feet 
Setback from lake: 100 feet from ordinary high mark 



 

City of Independence   6 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

Setback from wetland: 10 ten feet from the outside edge of the 
required wetland buffer 

 
The plans will need to be revised to clearly show the building setbacks. It is 
also recommended that a plan be prepared that shows a “typical” house plan 
for each lot to verify that the lots can accommodate a home site. A draft 
ordinance amendment as been drafted for review and consideration. The 
ordinance amendment and PUD requirements would be considered at the time 
of final plat. 

12. It	does	not	appear	that	there	are	any	proposed	HOA/Covenant	restrictions	
relating	to	accessory	structures.	Please	provide	additional	information	
relating	to	proposed	thoughts	on	accessory	structures.	The	City	would	
propose	developing	a	new	accessory	structure	provision	with	the	PUD	
similar	to	the	following:	

 
Accessory Structure Maximum Size: 1,000 square feet (combined attached 
garage and detached accessory structures). 

Accessory Structure Setbacks: Front Yard – located to the rear of the 
principal 
structure. 
Side Yard – 
15 feet Rear 
Yard – 40 
feet 

 
13. The	proposed	plan	indicates	open	space	around	the	perimeter	and	includes	

Outlots	A,	B,	C,	D	and	E.	Outlot	D,	which	is	centrally	located	is	proposed	to	
contain	an	HOA	community	amenity	space.	All	Outlots	will	become	the	
responsibility	of	the	homeowner’s	association	established	for	this	
development.	Documentation	indicating	the	conveyance	of	this	ownership	
and	the	maintenance	responsibility	has	been	provided	to	the	City.	The	
Outlots	will	be	maintained	as	described	in	the	HOA	documents	as	mowed	
and	managed	landscape	open	areas.	

 
14. The	preliminary	plat	indicates	a	66-foot-wide	ROW	and	a	26-foot-wide	

road.	The	street	construction	plan	indicates	a	30-foot-wide	street.	Please	
revise	the	preliminary	plat	to	match	the	construction	drawings.	

 
15. Lots	16	and	17,	Block	1	are	less	than	1	acre	in	size	and	will	need	to	be	

modified	to	meet	the	minimum	lot	size	requirements.	
 

16. There	is	an	existing	tree	stand	located	on	the	property	which	is	primarily	
along	the	ravine/drainage	area.	The	City	is	concerned	and	desires	that	
these	areas	are	preserved	and	protected	in	the	after	condition	of	the	



 

City of Independence   7 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

property.	The	City	has	shoreland	alteration	limitations	specified	in	the	
shoreland	ordinance	(see	attached).	

 
17. Please	indicate	the	top	of	bluff	structure	setbacks	on	the	site	plan.	

 
18. Please	label	all	drainage	and	utility	easements	on	the	preliminary	plat.	It	

appears	that	there	should	be	extended	onto	Lots	14	and	15	and	6	and	7,	
Block	1.	

 
19. A	landscape	plan	is	required.	Please	submit	a	landscape	plan	for	review.	

The	City	will	want	to	see	buffering	and	screening	along	the	entirety	of	the	
right	of	ways	of	South	Lake	Sarah	and	Perkinsville	Roads	and	the	rear	yards	
of	Lots	15-18,	Block	1.					

	
20. Park	dedication	will	be	required	for	this	development.	No	dedication	of	

open	space	was	discussed	during	the	concept	plan	review	of	this	property.	
The	proposed	development	does	not	include	sidewalks	or	trails.	The	City	
had	discussed	a	trail	along	Perkinsville	at	one	time	but	understand	that	it	
may	be	challenging	to	extend	the	trail	beyond	this	property	without	a	
designated	connection	point	on	CSAH	19.	 Cash	in	lieu	of	land	will	be	
required	in	accordance	with	the	City’s	current	park	dedication	fee	of	
$3,500	per	lot	(less	than	4.99	acres).	One	park	dedication	credit	will	be	
given	for	the	existing	house	proposed	to	remain.	The	park	dedication	fee	
requirement	for	this	development	is	anticipated	to	be	approximately	
$94,500	(27	lots	x	$3,500).	

 
21. Please	see	the	comments	provided	by	the	City’s	Water	Resource	Engineer,	

Shane	Nelson,	dated	June	2,	2022,	pertaining	to	water	resources.	
 

Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission is being asked to consider the application for preliminary plat, 
subject to the approval of an ordinance amendment, conditional use permit, rezoning and 
comprehensive plan amendment with the following findings and conditions: 

 
1. The	 proposed	 rezoning,	 conditional	 use	 permit,	 preliminary	 plat	 and	

comprehensive	plan	amendment	meet	all	applicable	conditions,	 criteria	and	
restrictions	stated	in	the	City	of	Independence	Ordinance.	

 
2. City	Council	approval	of	the	preliminary	plat	is	subject	to	approval	and	

completion	of	the	following	items:	
 

a) Metropolitan	Council	approval	of	a	Comprehensive	Plan	Amendment.	
 

b) Review	and	adoption	of	an	ordinance	amendment	to	include	planned	
unit	developments	as	a	conditional	use	in	the	RR-Rural	Residential	



 

City of Independence   8 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

zoning	district.	
 

c) Rezoning	of	the	property	from	AG-Agriculture	to	RR-Rural	Residential.	
 

d) Review	and	approval	of	a	conditional	use	permit	approving	a	
planned	unit	development.	

 
e) Approval	of	the	Quad	City	Agreement	(stipulates	sewer	connections	

through	Medina)	by	the	applicable	cities	that	are	a	party	to	the	
agreement.	

 
f) The	Applicant	shall	address	all	engineering	comments	made	by	the	

City’s	Water	Resource	Engineer,	Shane	Nelson,	dated	June	2,	2022,	
pertaining	to	water	resources.	

 
g) The	Applicant	shall	make	all	revisions	requested	in	the	staff	report,	

Planning	Commission	and	City	Council.	
h) The	Applicant	shall	receive	approval	and	comply	with	all	applicable	

regulations	and	conditions	prescribed	by	Pioneer	Sarah	Creek	
Watershed	Management	Organization.	

 
i) The	Applicant	shall	receive	the	approval	of	the	Department	of	

Natural	Resources.	
 

j) The	Applicant	shall	enter	into	a	development	agreement	with	the	City	
for	this	development.	

 
k) The	Applicant	shall	provide	a	letter	of	credit	as	established	by	

the	development	agreement	for	all	improvements	associated	
with	this	development.	

 
l) The	Applicant	shall	provide	the	City	with	copies	of	the	HOA	agreement	

and	covenants,	including	information	related	to	the	maintenance	
plantings	and	storm	water	easements.	

 
m) The	Applicant	shall	obtain	all	necessary	City,	County,	PCA	and	

other	regulatory	agency	approval	and	permits	prior	to	
construction.	

 
3. The	Applicant	shall	pay	for	all	costs	associated	with	the	City’s	review	of	the	

subdivision,	rezoning,	conditional	use	permit	and	preliminary	plat	and	
general	plan.	

 
4. The	Applicant	shall	submit	the	final	plat	to	the	City	within	180	days	

days	of	the	preliminary	plat	approval.	
 



 

City of Independence   9 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 
Kaltsas- “Otten” property – allow subdivide into 28 lots known as Bridgevine subdivision. Located at 
Perkinsville Rd and South Lakeshore Dr. Applicant seeking several actions – historically concept 
plan. It has come before the city quite a few times with different plans. 2018 – 28-unit subdivision. 
Originally it was over 100 units, then 96-unit concept plan, now revised down to 28. RR zoned AG. 
Surrounded by sanitary sewer and Lake Independence. There has been a lot of calls and interest in 
this property. It is zoned AG, guided RR. Not sewered residential outside of those on the lakeshore. A 
plan amendment would have to be approved and adopted. It would be submitted to Met Council for 
approval. City doesn’t allow for 1 acre lots outside of the lakeshore district. City would have to come 
up with an ordinance or change and ordinance.  
        
Density in similar situations would be much less. Adopt a new zoning district and come up with a standard 
that is more for just this development. We would have to rezone from AG to something or in this case RR. 
Not permitted uses, conditional uses. Prelim plat to allow 28-unit subdivision. Any approval would be 
subject to these other items happening at a future date.  
 
Emails have been sent to the city and planning commission. The city does not have the ability to prohibit 
marketing material for lots, developments, etc. There are no approvals, we need to go through public 
hearings and other steps as required to get approval. It is common for realtors to advertise lots/properties to 
gain interest. Several other entities would need to approve this and not just the city.  
 
Two sanitary sewer stubs on the property. We would need to service 26 additional houses, so of the 28 total 
on this property, 27 new homes + the 1 existing. In city ordinances, property within 1000 lineal feet within 
shoreline and regulated overlay. We would need Met Council/MC approval to get city sewer for all the 
additional lots. Rural Residential/RR means 1:5 with the shoreline exception. The city has discussed the 
property with Met Council in the past, as it is right now, we have not done anything to reguide the property. 
Applicant is asking to reguide it as something to allow these units. MC requires density 3:1. We would have 
to offset density somewhere else. With projected sewer, in the 2030 plan, city had to guide a property S of 
Perkinsville and E of Budd at 4.7:1. It wasn’t realistic and was a placeholder. In 2040 plan, except out 
Lindgren Ln. Projecting future we need to get density at 3:1 and this property would be included in this 
plan. Sewer Factors: IND doesn’t have its own sewer. All sewer runs through Medina.  Greenfield’s runs 
through IND. Loretto negotiated to join to the Quad City agreement and will need to be amended. Medina is 
open to discussions. 
 
When this came up with the 100+ unit, traffic impact was discussed. We did traffic impact analysis, there 
was minimum delay associated with this development. City talked with HC to look at intersection of 19 and 
Perkinsville about funding options to improve this intersection. HC funding west of the loop is harder to 
receive but we would aggressively pursue it. The city would have to cover 50% of improvements made 
which are cost prohibitive. Discussions re HC design will continue. 
 
28 1-acre lots proposed. Access off Perkinsville Rd going N and S. Second access off of S Lakeshore going 
E and W. 1 cul-de-sac in the development. 2 pieces: non-riparian (non-lakeshore) lots and lakeshore lots. 
Stormwater through two ponds in outlots. All lots would have to be 1-acre. Shoreland lots would have to 
meet all shoreline overlay zoning district standards. Majority of those lots are 1.5-2.5 acre lots. Applicant 
would acquire an outlot of 35ft strip of land that would be replatted. Grading, natural resources were looked 
at. Ravine system goes down to Lake Indy a part of this property. Preservation of this ravine system – the 
orientation of the lots, plats to the S. It would allow for majority of the ravine to be protected. Put restrictive 



 

City of Independence   10 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

easements on top of that to preserve it. We recommended Screening along S Lakeshore and Perkinsville Rd. 
We will be looking for more detail in the landscaping plans. Some enhanced screening already present.  
 
We recommended some standards – min. lot size of 1 acre, width of 100ft, front yard 35, side yard 
15ft, corner 35, rear 40, shoreline 100, wetlands 10ft. This gives a reduced side yard, front yard, 
maintaining rear.  
Accessory structures need to be addressed. 1850sqft of accessory how it stands, that is excessive for 
these lots. Max access of 1000sqft including garage (detached or attached). Applicant is proposing 
curb and gutter to control stormwater. 30ft wide street is proposed and allows for parking on both 
sides and allows for fire access.  
Community outlot D proposed/neighborhood park. Community access point on the 30ft wide strip of land 
going down to the lake. We need more direction and feedback. A day only dock for residents of this 
development. No overnight or storage.  
Do we need to do any park dedication on this type of development? Maybe a sidewalk on Perkinsville with 
a connection into a park system. Park dedication estimate would go to city’s park fund.  
 
Thompson – asked for maps of the 1000 ft of overlay. Kaltsas – it takes into account lots 25-28. We have 
exhibits we have created but not included. Thompson – in the planned unit, the lot count isn’t called out, is 
it because of our existing standards? Kaltsas – the lot count isn’t relevant to the standards. 1 acre min on the 
1000 ft. We are guessing until we get a proposal until we get a plan that meets all the standards. We don’t 
cap density on shoreland. Thompson - how did we get to the 28 lots? Kaltsas - by current ordinance it is 
between 20-30 if I’m guessing.  
Story – it will be city sewer, not city water. This doesn’t meet the 3:1 density. Kaltsas – in low density, the 
goal is that the city is a 3:1. We asked Met Council not to penalize us with our city. The brown areas around 
Maple Plain are where we are looking at increased density. It is a balance with the larger density and lower 
density and as residents inquire.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Developer Steve Bohl – Merz property and Fieldstone Woods, we created neighborhoods in these areas and 
they have developed real nicely. This property is great and has city sewer. We needed to be creative with 
city sewer. 1-acre average lots. Water quality that will go into Lake Indy with curb and gutter proposal. 
Want to create a neighborhood park and a neighborhood again. We have images of post and beam, 
playground, fire pit showing a natural environment. Old landscape nursery. 250+ trees transplanted 
throughout the site. Luxury single family home neighborhood. Two comp neighborhoods (Hamilton 
Century Farms, S of MP & Deer Hill Preserve, Medina) – Market values between the two. The advantage is 
having the curb and gutter and really landscape the lots, san sewer.  Submitted generic plan but our intention 
is to make it absolutely gorgeous. Preserving the ravine is agreed. 
 
Thompson – HOAs are hard to run, a dock is for common use with restrictions, etc. What is the plan and 
enforcement?  Bohl – knows how to structure the HOA docs, the outlot at the lake is an amenity to the lake 
as a passive use. Charles Cud, in Victoria, they had a pontoon, limited restrictions on age, online 
reservations, no public dock, etc. There are ways to monitor and manage it. Canoes and a pontoon dock 
would be adequate. There won’t be a beach, just walking path.  If one of the owner’s wanted to bring their 
boat to Baker Park for a day, they’d be allowed too.  Thompson – since the strip is removed from the 
development, it is a unique characteristic.  



 

City of Independence   11 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

Bohl -it is part of the Otten property. There will be some sensitivity with residents near it. It will be a great 
amenity. Thompson – is it a legal lot of record? Kaltsas – no, the lot that adjoins it, it is part of it. You 
couldn’t subdivide it into a lot of its own.  Dumas – a party down by the docks don’t impact the 28 lots, just 
the properties already there. Who would you call?  Bohl – the HOA. We can make this as restricted as 
necessary by the residents. It should be a passive use. Volkenant – have you considered realigning the lot 
lines so the neighborhood park would be closer to the lake access but more controlled (Trillium Bay)?  Bohl 
– preference is to keep the neighborhood centralized. The ravine on the W side is where we want to place 
the post and beam. It will keep people away from the lake a little more too. Gardner – Asked about 
sidewalks on the N side of Pagenkopf so it ties into the trail going to the dock down to Perkinsville. Bohl – 
We’d be willing to do a sidewalk along the W side. People do like them in neighborhoods. Volkenant – 
How do people in 8, 9 and 10 access the lakeshore with the ravine in their backyards? Bohl –There is a 
narrative that proposes a scenic overlay over the boundaries of the ravine.  10 does. Keep mature trees. 
Offer to 8 & 9   a walkway, a cool landscaping feature. The desirability of these lots is being at the end 
looking at the backdrop. Volkenant – What materials of bridges or widths are quantified?  Bohl – no. 
Volkenant – What about owners cutting down the trees to get a better view of the lake?  Bohl – We can 
restrict that in the HOA docs. Attorney included a 3 paragraph. MK- Our interest would be to protect those. 
Story – Asked about improvement about the sewer system in order for this development to occur. What are 
the costs of this? Kaltsas – We are waiting for this number. There is a lift station there now that is old, so we 
need to see what we need to upgrade and change to service this area. Thompson – Is that work done by the 
city and taken on by the dev? Kaltsas – yes. Likely fee based. 
Bohl – Reason for accessory buildings – architect approval, does not diminish value to the neighbor, 
appropriately landscaped, etc.  Bohl – yellow house on the property – the grade behind this home cuts 
through lot 2 and 3. It’s a natural drainage and poor. Curb and gutter design will have a better impact on this 
one and future stormwater management will be better.  
 
Keith Becker – 4915 S Lakeshore – The comp plan has not been approved by Metcouncil? Kaltsas – no. 
There isn’t room to put a path where the runoff and his driveway. What changed since Mayor Johnson said 
we don’t do community docks. Who will be doing the enforcement with the dock? It will be Beckers and 
Crees family. He won’t call HOA, but the Police. Please put it between 9 and 10.  I’m opposed to day slips.  
 
Tom Blanck – 5010 S Lakeshore Dr. – On behalf of water quality of Lake Ind, he is president of the LICA. 
There has been a lot of work on water quality on Lake Indy. New homes, sod, sprinkler systems will affect 
the water quality. Step the game up with quality. Thank you Mark for the traffic study 3 years ago, there 
wasn’t observation of weekend traffic. The corner close to the lake, there are trucks pulling boats, trailers, 
campers, etc. It is really active and there are blind spots. Number of cyclists are increasing as well, and the 
corner is really dangerous with the boat traffic as well. Improve the safety in the areas as well as that corner. 
I’d love to include a sidewalk to the park too. 
 
Randy Stinson – 2215 S Lakeshore - Right across the street from the development, top of hill. The 
neighborhood that is there compared to the houses being proposed should be a gated community. Fear of 
neighborhood changing dramatically. We are doubling the number of houses in that area. Increases noise. It 
is a quiet community now. Pollutants coming off of the yards and hard cover coming down to the lake. Our 
property values will go up if this goes through. 8 houses are retirees and the taxes are going to go up. He 
would like to see 2-acre minimum with more green space. There is a lot of wildlife there that we will lose. 
Agree with a sidewalk.  
 



 

City of Independence   12 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

Martha McCaven McCabe– lives on Budd blue house N of ravine- Are we doing an environmental impact 
statement for this development? That should be looked into. This will affect the ravine in her yard.  
 
Cynthia Durland - 5024 S Lakeshore – We closed public access on Budd when milfoil became a problem 
there. Why would we need to provide this for expensive lots? 
 
Scott Learned – 2165 South Lakeshore Dr– Is the sewer line big enough? Kaltsas - It would accommodate 
this. It is a forced main. It has the capacity to do this development. Learned – If we do 27 wells, is there 
enough groundwater for everyone? Kaltsas – That is state regulated outside of the city’s regulation. Learned 
– Since we all currently have wells, we want to keep ours working. 
 
Motion by Story to close public hearing, seconded by Thompson. Ayes: Volkenant, Gardner, Dumas, 
Tearse, Thompson, Story, & Usset. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion Approved.  
 
Gardner – What do you need? Kaltsas - Recommendation to approve, deny or table. There are a lot of things 
that need to be worked out. The big issues were resolved but others need to get fleshed out. Rezoning occurs 
at final plat. Thompson – Some things we need to talk about: the common dock on the skinny lot, explore 
the topic. A community dock is a non-starter. Turn a lot by the lake into a park area with dock. That would 
be worthy of revisiting.  Usset- 3:1 needs to be looked at and solved.  Kaltsas- This piece would change our 
math incrementally. But they would balance out.  Story – Too many of the items in our comp plans goes 
against this development.  Thompson – Water quality, what can we do to for well density. Kaltsas – It is 
state regulated, so we would have to talk with the state and maybe Metcouncil for regional impact. We do 
not regulate wells ourselves. Thompson – Make that information available. Kaltsas - I’m happy to do that. It 
would need to meet all applicable standards.  Gardner – Regarding high density. It’s not out in the 5 acres. 
This is not in the brown area. We’ve purposefully kept the brown off of this South of Perkinsville. Kaltsas – 
(1:49) We will need to write ordinances for other properties that are going to be sewered in the city. Ind has 
had 3 zoning districts, but it may not be best. We have in our ordinance cluster development standards, 
which we’ve talked extensively about. The PUD would just be a similar tool to cluster development. 
Protection of natural resources is certainly we’d want to understand. Thompson – Landscaping plans 
(keeping the character and don’t cut everything down), accessory HOA standards, potentially are we 
wanting to limit accessory structure sizes? With some of these changes, I’m inclined to recommend this 
moving forward to Council.  Kaltsas – Any conditions or revisions would have to be made prior to Council. 
Is this in prelim form or what provisions would need to be made? The formalities come back to you. We’d 
be agreeing to the 28 lots and other aspects before CC sees and you see at final plat. Now is the time you 
can add any recommendations to the plan. 
Volkenant – The developer should also need to address the corner intersection & traffic. Thompson – We 
have relevant 1996 (“nothing to fix”) data.  Gardner – Unless you want to pay for the traffic study.  
Kaltsas – This goes beyond this development but needs to be worked on in general.  Unlike most states who 
allow it, I wished MN allowed cities to take traffic impact fees but it’s not allowed.  
Volkenant – Lot 27 & 28 intersection issue, (2:00) could you add a possible roundabout at the corner? A 3-
entry roundabout. 
 
Thompson motioned that the property at 2236 South Lake Shore Drive to be known as Bridgevine, 
that the Planning Commission recommends approval of the proposal subject to staff 
recommendations 1 - 4 with the following recommendation to be altered:  n) sidewalk be included that 
transvers the property in total, o) easement overlay be created to protect ravine, p) craft tree 
maintenance and easement standards to protect natural vegetation growing in the ravine, q) no dock 



 

City of Independence   13 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

on outlot, path to outlot, or usage in common in the outlot, r) accessory building and HOA standards 
be combined with HOA recommendations around architecture and design criteria, Tearse seconded. 
Ayes: Volkenant, Gardner, Dumas, Tearse, & Thompson.  Nays: Story and Usset. Absent: None. 
Abstain: None. Motion Approved. 
 
Those wanting to follow this item, please check with the city first to ensure whether this will be on the 
agenda for the August 2nd City Council meeting.  Due to it also being the Night to Unite, the Council had 
approved moving the start time to 5pm so they could attend as many of the 19+ already scheduled 
gatherings.  
 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING:  Patti Good (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following 

actions for the property located at 4986 South Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID No. 24-118-
24-11-0001): 

 
a. A variance allowing a reduced setback from the OHWL permitting the construction of a screened 

deck to be constructed in place of the existing legal non-conforming deck on the subject 
property. 

 
Request: 
Patti Good (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions 
for the property located at 4986 South Lake Shore Drive, Independence, MN (PID 
No. 24-118-24-11- 0001): 

 
a. A variance allowing a reduced setback from the OHWL permitting the 

construction of a screened deck to be constructed in place of the existing 
legal non-conforming open deck on the subject property. 

 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located at 4986 South Lake Shore Drive. The existing home is 
a legal non-conforming structure that does not meet all of the current setback 
requirements. There is an existing home and detached accessory structure on the 
subject property. 

 
Property Information: 4986 South Lake 
Shore Drive Zoning: Rural Residential 
(Shoreland Overlay) Comprehensive Plan: 
Rural Residential 

Acreage: 1.0 acres (43,560 square feet) 

Impervious Surface Maximum: 25% (10,890 square feet) 

Discussion: 
The applicant submitted a building permit application seeking approval to rebuild the 



 

City of Independence   14 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

existing deck in its current location and to enclose a portion of the existing deck with a 
new screen porch. It was identified that the existing deck does not meet applicable 
setbacks from the OHWL and is considered a legal non-conforming structure. The City 
discussed the potential options (variance) with the applicant and noted that the existing 
deck can be rebuilt in its current location as long as no expansion or intensification of 
the deck occurs. 

 
The applicant decided to move forward with an application for a variance from the 
OHWL to allow the existing deck to be reconstructed generally in its current location 
with a small expansion (69 SF) to allow a new stairway and a portion of the deck to be 
covered/screened. The City has historically considered variances for properties located in 
the Shoreland Overlay district that are substandard lots of record. The City currently 
allows an “administrative variance” from the requisite standards by acknowledging lots 
of record that were in existence prior to 1982. For these lots, the City allows all requisite 
setbacks to by reduced by 40% for substandard lots of record. In this particular situation, 
there is no location attached to the rear (lakeside) of the home that would accommodate 
any expansion or intensification. 

 
The subject property is considered a substandard lot of record in accordance with 
the City’s Shoreland Ordinance Section 505.15. 

 
505.15. Substandard lots. Lots of record in the office of the county register of deeds or 
registrar of titles prior to December 1, 1982, which do not meet the requirements of this 
section 505, may be allowed as building sites provided: 

 
(a) such use is permitted in the zoning district; 

 
(b) the lot of record is in separate ownership from abutting lands, and can meet 
or exceed 60% of the lot area and setback requirements of this section; and 

 
(c) all requirements of section 705 of this code regarding individual sewage 
treatment systems are complied with. 

 
Setbacks for properties located in the shoreland ordinance are as follows: 



 

City of Independence   15 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 

 
OHWL Setback: 

Required: 60 feet 
Provided (Existing and Proposed): 38’ 

 
In addition to the setback requirements, properties located in the shoreland district can 
have a maximum impervious surface coverage of 25%. This property would be 
permitted to have a maximum impervious surface coverage of 10,890 square feet. The 
current property exceeds the allowable amount by 645 square feet. This is an existing 
condition that is considered to be legal non-conforming. The applicant has noted that 
they also own the adjacent vacant property and have calculated impervious surface 
coverage based on the total of both lots. The proposed deck would increase the 
impervious coverage on this property by 69 square feet. The applicant has prepared an 
analysis of the impervious surface area for this property. The existing and proposed 
impervious surface calculations are provided as follows: 

 

 
There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance. The City’s ordinance 
has established criteria for consideration in granting a variance. 

 



 

City of Independence   16 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance 
from the terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases 
where: 1) the variance is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) 
the variance is consistent with the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that 
there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical 
difficulties in complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical 
difficulties” means: 

 
(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable 

manner not permitted by the zoning code; 
 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner; 

 
(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties 
include, but are not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. 
(Amended, Ord. 2011-08)



 

City of Independence   17 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the 
zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 
520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend and the City 
Council may impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must 
bear a rough proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 
Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential	use	of	the	property	is	consistent	with	the	Rural	Residential	
District.	The	applicants	are	seeking	a	variance	that	is	generally	
consistent	with	similar	variances	granted	for	properties	in	this	area.	

 
b. Each	property	in	this	area	is	non-conforming	and	typically	requires	

relief	from	certain	setbacks.	The	City	will	need	to	determine	if	the	
requested	variance	is	unique	to	this	property.	

 
c. The	character	of	the	surrounding	area	is	residential.	The	proposed	single-

family	home	is	in	keeping	with	the	City’s	comprehensive	plan.	
 

There are several additional items that could be considered by the City: 
 

1. Many	of	the	surrounding	properties	have	been	granted	relief	from	the	
requisite	setback	requirements	due	to	the	small	size	of	the	properties,	
unique	lot	layouts	resulting	from	the	historic	nature	of	the	structures	on	
the	properties	and	the	change	in	nature	of	the	homes	from	seasonal	to	
permanent.	

2. The	neighboring	property	owner	to	the	east	has	submitted	a	letter	
in	support	of	the	requested	variance.	

3. The	proposed	screen	porch	would	be	covering	an	area	that	has	historically	
been	used	as	a	deck.	The	small	addition	that	would	be	added	to	this	deck	
would	accommodate	the	relocation	of	the	existing	stairway.	The	overall	
structure	would	not	be	moving	closer	to	the	OHWL.	

4. There	is	limited	visibility	to	the	portion	of	the	deck	that	would	be	screened	
from	adjacent	properties	due	to	the	heavy	tree	coverage.	

Ultimately the City will need to find that the aforementioned criteria for granting a variance have 
been met by the applicant. 
 
Public Comments: 
The City received one written letter from the adjacent property owner to the east. Several 
residents have stopped in or called City Hall to obtain additional information relating to the 
requested variance. 



 

City of Independence   18 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a recommendation or direction from the Planning Commission pertaining to the request 
for a variance. Should the Planning Commission consider granting a variance, the following findings 
and conditions should be considered. 

 
1. The	proposed	Variance	request	meets	all	applicable	conditions	and	restrictions	

stated	in	Chapter	V,	Section	520.19,	Procedures	on	variances,	in	the	City	of	
Independence	Zoning	Ordinance.	

 
2. The	variance	will	allow	a	deck	and	associated	screen	porch	to	be	constructed	in	

accordance	with	the	approved	plans	attached	hereto	as	Exhibit	B.	No	portion	of	the	
deck	shall	be	located	closer	than	38.27	feet	from	the	OHWL	of	Lake	Independence.	

 
3. Any	future	improvements	made	to	this	property	will	need	to	be	in	compliance	with	

all	applicable	standards	relating	to	the	Rural	Residential	and	Shoreland	Overlay	
zoning	districts.	No	expansion	of	the	home/	garage	or	impervious	areas	will	be	
permitted	without	an	additional	variance	request.	

 
4. The	Applicant	shall	pay	for	all	costs	associated	with	the	City’s	review	of	the	

requested	variance.	
 

 
 

Kaltsas- variance to consider allowing a legal nonconforming structure. Screened deck in place of open 
deck. RR, 1 acre in size. They own two lots, one just to the S and W. A vacant lot. Possibility of 
resurfacing current deck but it is a legal non-conforming deck. Required setback is 60ft. They can be 
rebuilt in its entirety. They want to rebuild the deck but add a screened deck, push back the stairs. Grant 
variance to exception to shoreline setback. Deck was done prior to our current standards. Submitted a 
letter of support from adjacent property owner.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 

Good- Our home was built in 1971, proximity on the lakeside is non-conforming. We want the 
same footprint but eliminate the stairway which was closer to the lake and having that a 
screened porch. The new edition  

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 

Motioned by Story to approve the variance for the construction of a roof at 4986 South Lake Shore 
Drive with staff recommendation of 1-4, seconded by Thompson.  Ayes: Volkenant, Gardner, Dumas, 
Tearse, Thompson, Story, & Usset. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion Approved.  

 
This will go to the August 2nd City Council at 5pm. 
 



 

City of Independence   19 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

7. PUBLIC HEARING:  Jeffrey Pitzenberger (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the 
following actions for the property located at 4082 Woodhill Drive, Independence, MN (PID No. 01-118-
24-34-0012): 

 
a. A variance to allow a detached accessory dwelling unit on a property that is less than 2.5 acres.  
 
b. A conditional use permit to allow an accessory dwelling unit. 

 
Request: 
Jeffrey Pitzenberger (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for 
the property located at 4082 Woodhill Drive, Independence, MN (PID No. 01-118-24-34-0012): 

 
a. A	variance	to	allow	a	detached	accessory	dwelling	unit	on	a	property	that	is	less	than	

2.5 acres. 
 

b. A	conditional	use	permit	to	allow	an	accessory	dwelling	unit.	
 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located at 4082 Woodhill Drive which is on the northeast corner of CSAH 11 and 
Woodhill Drive. The property has frontage on Lake Sarah and comprised of mostly upland with a 
wetland on the east side of the property. There are no existing structures located on the property. 

 
Property Information: 4082 Woodhill Drive Zoning: 
RR-Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
Comprehensive Plan: RR-Rural Residential Acreage: 
2.00 acres 

Discussion: 
The applicant approached the City about the possibility of constructing a detached accessory 
dwelling unit on this property prior to acquiring the property. The property was recently platted as 
a part of the Lake Sarah Hill Subdivision. It was noted that the City’s current ordinance does not 
allow detached accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) on properties less than 2.5 acres. For properties 
less than 2.5 acres, ADU’s are required to be attached to the principal structure. 

 
The City considers allowing ADU’s as a conditional use in the RR-Rrural Residential zoning 
district. The intent of the ordinance was to allow for “mother-in-law” type units to be located within 
the principal structure or within a detached accessory building. The applicant recently acquired this 
property and the property to the north and discussed regulations relating to ADU’s for this property. 
The applicant is planning on constructing a principal residence on this property in 2022-2023 and 
would like the City to consider allowing a separate detached ADU to be constructed following/at 
the same time as construction of the principal structure. 

 
The applicant has prepared plans for the development of the property which include both the 
principal and accessory dwelling units. The City has adopted standards requiring the ADU to be 



 

City of Independence   20 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

proportional and subordinate to the principal structure. The proposed principal house and accessory 
dwelling unit have the following specifics: 

 
Main House: 

 
3316 SF 1st and 2nd Floors (33% * 3316 = 1094 SF) 

 
Accessory	Dwelling	Unit:	

 
Allowed SF 1094 
SF allowed 

 
Proposed SF 
1198 SF* (Excludes attached garage) 
*Applicant has noted that they can reduce the SF to meet the 1094 SF 

 
Setbacks Required Proposed 
Front Yard 85’ from CL 100’ 
Side Yard 15’ 20’ 
Rear Yard 100’ from OHWL 200’+ 

 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit is comprised 2 bedrooms, 2 baths, kitchen, great room, 
dining room, mud room, mechanical and attached garage. In order for the City to consider a CUP 
for an accessory dwelling unit, the applicant will need to demonstrate how they meet all 
applicable criteria for granting a conditional use permit and for an accessory dwelling unit. The 
City has criteria broadly relating to Conditional Use Permits and then more focused criteria 
relating specifically to accessory dwelling units. 

 
An accessory dwelling unit must meet the following criteria: 

 
Subd. 2. "Accessory Dwelling Unit." A secondary dwelling unit that is: 

(a) Physically	attached	to	or	within	a	single-family	dwelling	unit	or	within	a	detached	a	
accessory building that has a principal structure on the parcel; and 

 
The	applicant	is	proposing	to	construct	a	detached	accessory	dwelling	unit.	As	a	result	of	the	
property	being	less	than	2.5	acres,	the	applicant	is	seeking	a	variance	 to	 allow	 a	 detached	
structure.	

 
(b) Subordinate	in	size	to	the	single-family	dwelling	unit;	and	

 
The	 proposed	 accessory	 dwelling	 unit	 would	 be	 subordinate	 in	 size	 to	 the	 single-	 family	
dwelling	unit.	

 



 

City of Independence   21 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

(c) Fully	separated	from	the	single-family	dwelling	unit	by	means	of	a	wall	or	floor,	with	
or	without	a	door;	and	  

The	proposed	accessory	dwelling	unit	would	be	 in	a	detached	structure	which	is	separated	
from	the	single-family	home.	

 
(d) Architecturally	compatible	with	the	principal	structure	(using	materials,	finishes,	style	

and	colors	similar	to	the	principal	structure);	and	
 

The	proposed	ADU	has	been	designed	to	be	architecturally	similar	to	the	proposed	principal	
structure.	 Architecture	and	materials	appear	to	be	consistent	with	the	existing	home.	

 
(e) The	lesser	of	33%	of	the	above	ground	living	area	of	the	principal	structure	or	1,200	

square	feet,	and	no	less	than	400	square	feet;	and	
 

The	principal	structure	is	proposed	to	be	3,316	square	feet	of	above	ground	living	 space	not	
including	 the	walkout	 basement.	 33%	of	 3,316	 square	 feet	 equals	 1,094	 square	 feet.	 The	
applicant	has	initially	proposed	a	1,198	SF	detached	accessory	structure.	The	applicant	has	
noted	that	they	intend	to	reduce	the	overall	size	proposed	to	meet	the	allowable	SF.	It	should	
be	noted	that	the	mechanical	room	can	be	excluded	from	the	total	calculation.	

 
(f) Not	in	excess	of	the	maximum	square	footage	for	accessory	structures	as	permitted	in	

this	code;	and	
 

The	existing	property	is	2.5	acres	in	size	and	is	limited	to	1,850	square	feet	for	the	total	square	
footage	 for	all	 detached	accessory	 structures.	The	proposed	 structure	would	 fit	within	 the	
allowable	SF.	

 
(g) Has	permanent	provisions	for	cooking,	living	and	sanitation;	and	

 
The	 applicant	 is	 proposing	 to	 construct	 permanent	 provisions	 for	 cooking;	 living	 and	
sanitation	(see	attached	depiction).	

 
(h) Has	no	more	than	2	bedrooms;	and	

 
The	applicant	is	proposing	to	have	two	(2)	bedrooms	within	the	proposed	accessory	dwelling	
unit.	

 
(i) Limited	to	relatives	of	the	homesteaded	owner	occupants	or	the	homesteaded	owners	

of	 the	 principal	 structure.	 The	 total	 number	 of	 individuals	 that	 reside	 in	 both	 the	
principal	dwelling	unit	and	accessory	dwelling	unit	may	not	exceed	the	number	that	
is	allowed	by	the	building	code;	and	

 
The	owner	of	the	property	is	proposing	that	the	accessory	dwelling	unit	will	be	occupied	by	
his	family.	

 



 

City of Independence   22 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

(j) Uses	the	existing	on-site	septic	systemb	or	an	approved	holding	tank;	and	
 

The	proposed	accessory	structure	will	be	connected	to	the	City	sewer	line	that	will	also	
serve	the	principal	residence.	

 
(k) Respectful	of	the	future	subdivision	of	the	property	and	the	primary	and	secondary	

septic	 sites.	 The	 City	may	 require	 a	 sketch	 of	 the	 proposed	 future	 subdivision	 of	 a	
property;	and	

 
The	accessory	structure	does	not	impede	the	ability	of	the	owner	to	subdivide	the	property	in	
the	future	or	utilize	a	secondary	septic	site.	

 
(l) In	compliance	with	the	adopted	building	code	relating	to	all	aspects	of	the	dwelling	

unit.	
 

The	applicant	will	be	required	to	obtain	a	building	permit	for	all	proposed	improvements.	
 

a On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the 
principal dwelling unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory 
structure that meets all criteria of this section. 

 
b The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 
compliance with all applicable standards. Any system that does not meet all applicable 
standards shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 

 
The applicant has discussed the proposed improvements to the property with the City. The 
applicant has submitted a site survey, sketch of the proposed building plans, elevations of the 
proposed principal residence and ADU and a site plan. The accessory dwelling unit will need to 
meet all applicable building codes and building regulations. 

 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance (Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 

 
1. The	conditional	use	will	not	adversely	affect	the	health,	safety,	morals	and	general	

welfare	of	occupants	of	surrounding	lands.	
 

2. The	proposed	use	will	not	have	a	detrimental	effect	on	the	use	and	enjoyment	of	other	
property	in	the	immediate	vicinity	for	the	proposes	already	permitted	or	on	the	
normal	and	orderly	development	and	improvement	of	surrounding	vacant	property	
for	uses	predominant	in	the	area.	

 
3. Existing	roads	and	proposed	access	roads	will	be	adequate	to	accommodate	

anticipated	traffic.	



 

City of Independence   23 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 

4. Sufficient	off-street	parking	and	loading	space	will	be	provided	to	serve	the	proposed	
use.	

 
5. The	proposed	conditional	use	can	be	adequately	serviced	by	public	utilities	or	on-site	

sewage	treatment,	and	sufficient	area	of	suitable	soils	for	on-site	sewage	treatment	is	
available	to	protect	the	city	form	pollution	hazards.	

 
6. The	proposal	includes	adequate	provision	for	protection	of	natural	drainage	systems,	

natural	topography,	tree	growth,	water	courses,	wetlands,	historic	sites	and	similar	
ecological	and	environmental	features.	

 
7. The	proposal	includes	adequate	measures	to	prevent	or	control	offensive	odor,	fumes,	

dust,	noise,	or	vibration	so	that	none	of	these	will	constitute	a	nuisance.	
 

8. The	proposed	condition	use	is	consistent	with	the	comprehensive	plan	of	the	City	of	
Independence.	

 
9. The	proposed	use	will	not	stimulate	growth	incompatible	with	prevailing	

density	standards.	
 
The standards for granting a variance are also clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance as 
follows: 

 
520.21. Standards	for	granting	variances.	Subdivision1.	The	City	Council	may	grant	a	variance	
from	the	terms	of	this	zoning	code,	including	restrictions	placed	on	nonconformities,	in	cases	
where:	1)	the	variance	is	in	harmony	with	the	general	purposes	and	intent	of	this	zoning	code;	2)	
the	variance	is	consistent	with	the	comprehensive	plan;	and	3)	the	applicant	establishes	that	
there	are	practical	difficulties	in	complying	with	the	zoning	code	(Amended,	Ord.	2011-08)	

 
Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in 
complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means: 

 
(a) The	property	owner	proposes	to	use	the	property	in	a	reasonable	manner	not	

permitted	by	the	zoning	code;	
 

(b) the	plight	of	the	property	owner	is	due	to	circumstances	unique	to	the	
property	not	created	by	the	landowner;	

 
(c) the	variance,	if	granted,	will	not	alter	the	essential	character	of	the	locality.	

 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties 
include, but are not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. 
(Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 



 

City of Independence   24 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 
Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the zoning 
code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011- 08) 

 
520.23. Conditions	and	restrictions.	The	board	of	adjustments	may	recommend,	and	the	City	
Council	may	impose	conditions	on	a	variance.	Conditions	must	be	directly	related	to	and	must	
bear	a	rough	proportionality	to	the	impact	created	by	the	variance.	(Amended,	Ord.	2011-08)	

 
There are several items that could be considered by the City: 

 
1. The	proposed	ADU	is	located	in	the	“front”	yard	of	the	property	and	will	be	visible	

from	the	Woodhill	Drive	and	surrounding	properties.	The	City	will	want	to	consider	if	
there	are	any	potential	impacts	to	surrounding	properties	related	to	having	a	second	
structure	located	in	the	front	yard.	

2. The	applicant	could	locate	a	detached	accessory	structure	on	this	property	and	
meet	applicable	setbacks	(15	feet).	

3. Given	that	this	is	an	undeveloped	property,	the	applicant	could	meet	the	ordinance	
by	attaching	the	ADU	to	the	principal	structure.	

4. The	adjacent	property	to	the	south	is	larger	than	2.5	acres	and	could	accommodate	a	
detached	ADU.	The	properties	to	the	north	and	across	Woodhill	to	the	west	are	not	
large	enough	to	accommodate	a	detached	ADU.	

Ultimately the City will need to find that the criteria for granting a conditional use permit and the 
standards for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant. This property is 2 acres in 
size and is limited to an attached ADU in accordance with the City standards. Consideration for the 
proposed conditional use permit should weigh the impact of having a detached accessory dwelling 
unit located on this property. The proposed new home and ADU appear to be designed so that they 
are compatible and consistent. 

 

Should the requested variance and CUP to allow an accessory dwelling unit be recommended for 
approval by the Planning Commission, it is suggested that the following conditions be noted by the 
City: 

 

§ The Conditional Use Permit will be subject to the applicant constructing 
the principal structure on the property and successfully obtaining and 
completing a building permit for all applicable improvements required for a 
dwelling unit. 

 

§ The ADU be reduced in size so that it is no greater than 1,094 SF. 
 

§ The ADU be constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 



 

City of Independence   25 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

 

§ The ADU will meet all applicable setbacks of the City’s zoning ordinance 
Neighbor Comments: 

The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed conditional use permit to 
allow an accessory dwelling unit. 
Recommendation: 

Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission for the requested Conditional Use 
Permit with the following findings and conditions: 

1. The	proposed	Conditional	Use	Permit	request	meets	all	applicable	conditions	and	
restrictions	stated	in	Chapter	V,	Section	510,	Zoning,	in	the	City	of	Independence	
Zoning	Ordinance.	

 
2. The	Conditional	Use	Permit	will	be	issued	subject	to	the	following	items	being	completed:	

 
a. The	 Conditional	 Use	 Permit	 will	 be	 subject	 to	 the	 applicant	 constructing	 the	

principal	 structure	 on	 the	 property	 and	 successfully	 obtaining	 and	 completing	 a	
building	permit	for	all	applicable	improvements	required	for	a	dwelling	unit.	

 
b. The	ADU	be	reduced	in	size	so	that	it	is	no	greater	than	1,094	SF.	

 
c. The	ADU	will	be	constructed	in	accordance	with	the	approved	plans.	

 
d. The	ADU	will	meet	all	applicable	setbacks	of	the	City’s	zoning	ordinance.	

 
3. Prior	to	the	City	Council	placing	the	Conditional	Use	Permit	into	effect,	the	applicant	

shall	provide	the	City	with	the	following	items:	
 

4. The	Applicant	shall	pay	for	all	costs	associated	with	the	City’s	review	of	the	
requested	conditional	use	permit.	

 
 
CUP request and variance, possibility of constructing a new home plus an ADU. Recently subdivided. 1st 
and 2nd floors = 3,316 sq ft. They would reduce size if sent to approval. Architectural compatibility between 
the SFD and ADU. It will be used for family. Property is on city sewer, and we don’t have any ADU on city 
sewer currently. CUP should not take away reasonable use from surrounding properties. Most have been 
located within primary structures, this is a detached structure. 2 properties near this property have detached 
ADU.  The applicant would reduce ADU to 1094 sq ft. & revise grading survey before it goes to CC. 
 
Thompson- The lot was created and subdivided in the last 18 months. The 2.5-acre requirement for the 
detached ADU ordinance was a longtime historical?  Kaltsas- They were original provisions, 10 yrs old.  
Dumas – Doesn’t it reduce the value of the property if you sell the property to someone and have 2 homes 
on the property?  Kaltsas- The City ordinances limit who can live in/rent ADU to be only blood relatives. It 
is trickier as we do more of. This is the first time we have a standalone. We will have a restriction to not get 
CO to not build ADU without principle. We wouldn’t permit this without the principle.  Gardner – Doesn’t 



 

City of Independence   26 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 Tuesday, July 19, 2022 

it restrict on the size of the main house’s size? Kaltsas- You can’t build an ADU without first having the 
principal home. Story- Let’s hear about the hardships. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jeffrey Pitzenberger – We bought the property with our intention of building our dream home. Throughout 
the process we wanted to help our aging parents who live in a 1902-built home with 5 stories and so wanted 
to build an ADU for them. We’re willing to reduce the size to the max size recommended by the city. It is 
heavily wooded so you wouldn’t see it from Woodhill.  Apologized for the builder drawing plans without 
understanding the 33% rule cap. They have no intention for asking for any other variances.  Thompson – 
The city’s ordinance says 2.5 acres. What is your hardship? Pitzenberger – Not being able to take care of 
our parents. Story – Can’t it be an attached dwelling unit?  Thompson – Everything has been known 
conditions. It was only purchased/divided recently.  What is the hardship of your doing and not purely 
economic? That is what’s needed to grant the variance. Story- Pointed to the previous request. Gardner – 
How hard would it be to attach it to your house? (hardship) Pitzenberger - We wouldn’t oppose doing it, but 
our parents would lose their privacy. Gardner- So that is the hardship! They would lose their privacy. What 
would you do with this space after your parents are no longer using it?  Pitzenberger – We’d use it as a 
remote-work office space for myself or my wife. Gardner- We’re looking for something to anchor ourselves 
on. The privacy thing is interesting though.   
  

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED   
  
An attached ADU means separate entrance thus avoiding 2 houses on 1 property, and it could have a 
breezeway. There are other properties that have a garage in between the attached ADU and principal 
structure. It has a CUP because it has a full bath and kitchen.  Outbuilding style vs. attached. ADU 1850 sq 
ft – 2.5 acres going up. They could build their house, then the 1850 sq ft ADU, and work on moving them 
in.  It doesn’t make sense. Existing building impact and ADU (mancave requirements). 2 houses typically 
are rented and hard for the City to administer. 1 principal structure is most practical.  
 
Motion by Thompson to deny variance on a property less than 2.5 acres rendering an ADU not 
necessary at 4082 Woodhill Drive, Dumas seconded.   Ayes: Volkenant, Dumas, Thompson, 
Story, & Usset. Nays: Tearse, Gardner. Absent: None. Abstain: None. Motion Denied.  

 
8. Open/Misc 
 
 
9. Adjourn. 
 

Story motioned to adjourn, Thompson seconded, and meeting was adjourned at 10:16pm 

 



1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. July 19, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

        TUESDAY July 19, 2022–6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Chambers 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.   ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting (virtual) 
ABSENT: None. 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, City Admin Assistant Simon, and Chief Kroells 
VISITORS: JP Story, Keith Becker, Steve Bohl  

 
All votes were roll call votes. 
 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be 
acted on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is 
desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered 
separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the July 5, 2022, Regular City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21343-21365) 
c. Agriculture Preserve Renewal Application for the Following Properties: 

i. PID No. 17-118-24-43-0008 (Requested by Keith Triplett) 
ii. PID No. 33-118-24-34-0001 (Requested by Maura Tierney) 

d. Large Assembly Permit for This Old Horse, Inc. (Polo Match at TC Polo Club) – To be Held on 
Sunday, August 7, 2022. 

e. Approve Adding Two (2) Additional Election Judges to for the Upcoming Elections. 
f. 2nd Quarter Building Permit Report (for information only). 
g. West Metro Drug Task Force (YTD Report – for information only). 

 
Motion by Betts, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, 
Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 
 

 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 
  

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 



2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. July 19, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• nothing   
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• nothing   
 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

• Fire Commission 
 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

• Hwy 12 Coalition  
• Fire Commission  
• Police Commission 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• Hwy 12 Coalition  
• Regional Council Mayors Meeting 

• Maple Plain Fire Commission  
• Police Commission 

• LMC Policy Committee (Zoom) 

• Visitation for Peter Tritz- formerly with LMC Trust Funds  
• Orono schools play, The Little Merimaid 

  
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• nothing more than what others mentioned  
 
7. West Hennepin Public Safety – Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the June 2022 Activity Report. 

 
Chief Kroells shared the West Metro Drug Task Force is extremely busy and successful - actively building 
cases and is one of the most successful DTF in Hennepin County. Members include: 1 WHPS, 2 HC 
Sherriff Dept (supervising), 1 Minnetrista, 1 Medina, and 1 Orono. They’ve been active since 2004 after 
completing a 2003 case study. Mayor Johnson recalled when it began, they filled the community room with 
all the drugs. Gary: 10 years ago, we were proud of a minimum number and now we need 10lbs to feel 
excited about it because of the amounts available. Cocaine is making a big comeback in MN and the 
Midwest. McCoy: asked what’s driving that. Kroells: Availability. It’s easier to come across the borders. 
Crossing into US from Mexico and is more expensive than Meth.  Legalizing Marijuana cuts into the 
Mexican cartels supply chain so they’re increasing their efforts to make others like Meth and making it 
cheaper to maintain their profit margins. Johnson: Several years ago, the HS were a hotbed. Is that still true 
recently? Kroells: MJ & TCH/vaping is, especially now that the state legalized TCH gummies. These are 
starter drugs, and they move up from that. McCoy: Gummy issue in schools yet? Kroells: It’s not well-
regulated and the interpretation “anyone can sell gummies”. It’s not licensed- so it’s not needed to sell. 
Kaltsas: Cities’ attorneys can weigh in and cities can make their own restrictions. So ordinances will need 
to be brought before the council. McCoy: After spending millions on “anti-smoking,” this should not be 
overlooked.   Betts: Can anyone overdose on them? Kroells: 10mg TCH can be too much, even for an 
addict. Shared from a person’s testimony:  A CO legal dose (MN-eating 2 to equal it) impacted someone 
making them feel like their legs were not working. Tobacco use is not a crime, only attempting to buy at a 
store if underage.  Betts: What does not interact well with TCH (life-threatening)? Kroells: IDK but some 
medical benefits exist but there are worries.  McCoy: noted “take 1 at a time” vs. smoking tobacco which 



3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. July 19, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

they don’t just smoke 1. Whatever if printed on the package, doesn’t mean anything.  
 
342 Incidents: 253- Independence & 89- Maple Plain.  See the full report for more details.  
 
WHPS may be down 1 squad after a pursuit. Lastly mentioned, Officers took their time to calm people 
down and deescalate helping those struggling. A suicidal male report.  Johnson:  Several suicidal reports 
were mentioned. What happens when taking them to hospitals?  Kroells: Hospitals do their best, but Drs 
release if they’re found not to be harmful to themselves. Rarely do they stay there long and are returned 
home. Mayor thanked the West Metro Drug Task Force and WHPS. 
 
  
 

8. 2022 Chip Sealing Bid Award: Discussion and Consideration of Awarding to Lowest Bidder.  
 

Kaltsas: Annually or biannually, we have an adopted 5-year plan that looks at various aspects of our roads. 
Franklin Hills, McKown Ct, Woodhill Ln and Becker Rd – we will look to update that next year for the 
next 5 years.  We only received 1 bid this year and a written statement from another saying that they 
couldn’t get it done this year. Pearson Bros, $1.25 last year up to $1.65. We budgeted $50k for roads 
annually. We are a couple thousand over but will reduce somewhere else to maintain budget. We had 
issues with sweepings last year and we will inspect and make sure to get granite chips up.  Johnson: Do we 
always use rollers with overlays? Kaltsas: Yes. Johnson: We will send out notification letters to the 
property owners to let them know when we will do this project.  Kaltsas: We are required to have more 
than one bid, but we have documentation saying that the other bid cannot get it done. Johnson: With the 
increased gas prices, I’m surprised the bid wasn’t higher.  

 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by McCoy to accept and approve the Pearson bid for chip sealing the 
streets. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
9. Discuss August 2, 2022, City Council Meeting Time to Facilitate Attendance at Night to Unite. 

 
Kaltsas: Anticipating 2 or maybe 3 routine items for the 8-2-2022 CC mtg and since Night to Unite is the 
same night, he proposed moving up the time so councilors could attend gatherings. Sometimes we can’t 
accommodate with our time schedules.  Johnson: A previous year’s host was also concerned as they’re on 
the agenda. Kroells: 12 parties are already registered. 7 already in Independence; more are likely coming. 
Police and Fire Depts usually meet here 4:30-4:45 and roll to those by 5:30-5:45pm.  Johnson: Pointed out 
that McCoy is the Fire Chief and would prefer to attend. McCoy agreed. Betts: We can’t change to a 
different day, right? McCoy: Kaltsas: I’ll limit to 2 items. Normally we have elections to contend with, but 
this yr. elections are on 8/ 9. 

 
 

Moved by McCoy, seconded by Spencer to move the starting time of the August 2nd City Council 
Meeting to 5pm. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

The City will publish in the papers and notify the Planning Commissioners. 
 

10. Discuss on Funding Community Park Garden Maintenance Updates 
 

Christian Eichers would like to fix vandalized kiosk and replace a few plants.  Kaltsas: We have funding. 
Eichers didn’t yet give a budget amount. Suggest it’s $1k or less. Minus Plexiglass which Gary will help 
monitor since we have cameras installed. No donuts have been seen and cameras are fully functioning 
now.  Johnson: We want to keep the park looking nice. Eichers won’t always be available to work on it, so 



4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 p.m. July 19, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

this reduces time that Public Works spends there.    
 

Moved by Spencer, seconded by Betts to allow spending up to $1,000 for replanting in the park.  
Ayes: Spencer, Grotting, McCoy, Betts, Johnson Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
Staff to reach out to Eichers 

 
11. Open/Misc.  

 
12.  Adjourn.  

 
Motion carried by Betts, second by Spencer to adjourn the meeting at 7:13pm.  

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson / Recording Secretary 
 
 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit to 

Construct a Ground Mounted Solar System on the  
Property located at 840 Wild Oak Trail 

 
To: Planning Commission 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: August 16, 2022 

Applicant: Russel Gilberg 

Property Owner: David Vandeneinde 

Location: 840 Wild Oak Trail  

 

Request: 
Russel Gilberg (Applicant) and David Vandeneinde (Owner) requests that the City consider the 
following action for the property located at 840 Wild Oak Trail, Independence, MN (PID No. 27-
118-24-33-0003): 
 

a. A conditional use permit to allow a ground mounted solar array on the subject 
property.   

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located at the end of Wild Oak Trail which is north of CSAH 6.  The property has an existing 
home, a detached accessory structure.  The property has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 840 Wild Oak Trail  
Zoning: Agriculture 

 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage: 3.66 acres 
 
 
 

 

 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	2	
 

  Subject Property 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking approval to construct a ground mounted solar system on the subject property. 
Ground mounted solar systems require a conditional use permit in all zoning districts of the City.  Ground 
mounted solar systems have the following requirements: 
 
Subd. 5.  Ground-mounted solar energy systems shall conform to the following standards:  

 (a)  Ground-mounted systems shall only be allowed on a parcel with an existing principal structure.  

 (b)  Ground-mounted systems shall be located only in rear or side yards.  

 (c)  Ground-mounted systems shall not be located in the Shoreland Overlay District.  



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	3	
 

 (d)  Ground-mounted systems shall be wholly screened from view from the public right-of-way and   
adjacent residential structures. Methods for screening shall include berming, fencing, 
landscaping and/or combination thereof.  

 (e)  Ground-mounted systems shall be located on a parcel of at least 2.5 acres.  

 (f)  Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 40 feet from the rear yards.  

 (g)  Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 30 feet from the side yards.  

 (h)  Ground-mounted systems shall have a maximum area of 500 SF.  

 (i)  The maximum height for any component of the system shall be 15 feet.  

 (j)  Ground-mounted systems shall be in compliance with any applicable local, state and federal 
regulatory standards, including building, electrical and plumbing codes.  

 (k)    Ground-mounted systems and their support structures shall be designed by a certified 
professional to meet applicable professional standards for the local soil and climate conditions.  

 
The proposed ground mounted solar system would be located in the side yard to the east of the existing 
barn located in the northeast corner.  The proposed solar system would be comprised of one ground 
mounted array.  The total square footage of the two arrays would be 488 SF.  This would be less than the 
500 feet maximum SF permitted.  The arrays would be setback approximately 38 feet from the north 
property line (side yard).  The required setback is a minimum of 30 feet. 
 

 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	4	
 

The proposed ground mounted system would be approximately 11 feet to the top of the highest portion of 
the panels (height is variable based on angle).  The maximum height allowed for any component of the 
proposed system is 15 feet.  The City requires systems to be wholly screened from view of the public right 
of way and adjacent residential structures.  There are currently no residential structures located near the 
proposed location.  The proximity of the proposed ground mounted system to the nearest residence and or 
public right of way is ~550 feet and is protected from view by existing vegetation or elevation.  No screening 
is proposed along the north or east property lines.  One additional consideration relating to screening is that 
the panels will be oriented to face south.  This will help to mitigate glare and or other visual impacts to 
surrounding properties as there is a significant wooded area to the south of the subject property. 
 
The applicant has also provided the City with an updated site plan and image of the solar system.   
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 
occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated 
traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 
5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to 
protect the city form pollution hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 
topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 
environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 
 
The City has discussed the proposed ground mounted solar system with the applicant.  It was noted that 
the proposed ground mounted solar system would offset approximately 85% of the applicant’s current 
power consumption.  The applicant also stated that if the ordinance relating to ground mounted solar allows 
for more area in the future, he would encourage consideration for a provision that allows expansion of the 
proposed system without additional review.  The proposed ground mounted solar system appears to meet 
all applicable standards provided for in the zoning ordinance.  The size of the system and its proximity to 
the surrounding property appears to adequately mitigate potential visual impacts.  Given the location of the 
property at the end of Wild Oak Trail, the orientation of the proposed solar system and its relationship to the 



840	Wild	Oak	Trail	–	CUP	Request	Planning	Commission	 	
	 Page	5	
 

surrounding properties, it appears that the proposed application can be found to meet the requirements for 
granting a conditional use permit amendment.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written or oral comments regarding the proposed amendment to the 
conditional use permit.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission pertaining to the request for a conditional use 
permit and amendment with the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed conditional use permit and amendment request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The conditional use permit will allow a ground mounted solar system to be located on the subject 

property and in accordance with the approved site plan attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 
 
a. The ground mounted solar system shall be constructed in accordance with all applicable zoning 

code, building code and other applicable standards.  
 

3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the resolution granting 
approval of the conditional use permit. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Ground Mounted Solar Site Plans (Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Russel Gilberg

Address: 1231 Industrial St. Ste. 200
Hudson, Wisconsin 54016

Primary Phone: 715-381-9977

Secondary Phone: 612-669-5365

Email: claudia@energyconcepts.us

Name: David Vandeneinde

Address: 840 Wild Oak Trail
Maple Plain, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 763-238-0209

Email: 840Dave@gmail.com

Property Address:

PID:

Planning Application Type: Conditional Use Permit

Description:

Supporting Documents: Construction Plans

Signature:



N

641'-10"

31
7'-

10
"

693'-5"

10
9'-

10
"

11
1'-

10
"

44
'-2

"

269'-2"37'-2"

19
9'-

6"

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

PV 0.0

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

SHEET INDEX:
PV 0.0: COVER SHEET
PV 1.0: SITE PLAN
S 1.1: MOUNT DETAILS
E 1.1: 3-LINE DIAGRAM
E 1.2: NOTES
E 1.3: WARNING LABELS
E 1.3A: PLACARD
- EQUIPMENT SPEC SHEET

COVER SHEET

SCALE: NTS

2 SATELLITE VIEW
PV 0.0

SCALE: NTS

3 VICINITY MAP
PV 0.0SCALE: 1/64" = 1'-0"

1 PLOT PLAN
PV 0.0

PROTECTION OF EMERGENCY RESPONDERS
ALL SHARP EDGES AND FASTENER TIPS SHALL BE
COVERED OR CRIMPED OVER TO ELIMINATE SHARP
EDGES, TO MINIMIZE RISK OF INJURY TO EMERGENCY
RESPONDERS.
ALL ROOF MOUNTED CONDUITS, BOXES, AND
EQUIPMENT CROSSING PATHWAYS ARE TO BE
CLEARLY IDENTIFIED BY A RED/WHITE REFLECTIVE
TAPE OR OTHER APPROVED MATERIAL.

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS:

PHOTOVOLTAIC GROUND MOUNT SYSTEM

GENERAL NOTES:
a. INSTALLATION OF SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC

SYSTEM SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
NEC ARTICLE 690, AND ALL OTHER
APPLICABLE NEC CODES WHERE NOTED
OR EXISTING.

b. PROPER ACCESS AND WORKING
CLEARANCE AROUND EXISTING AND
PROPOSED ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WILL
COMPLY WITH NEC ARTICLE 110.

c. ALL CONDUCTORS, INCLUDING THE
GROUNDING ELECTRODE CONDUCTOR
SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM PHYSICAL
DAMAGE IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC
ARTICLE 250.

d. ALL DC WIRES SHALL BE SIZED
ACCORDING TO [NEC 690.8]

e. DC CONDUCTORS SHALL BE WITHIN
PROTECTED RACEWAYS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH [NEC 690.31]

f. ALL SIGNAGE TO BE PLACED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL
JURISDICTIONAL BUILDING CODE.

g. PV MODULES TO BE RATED UL 1703
CLASS C FIRE RATING OR BETTER.

h. ALL EQUIPMENT TO BE CERTIFIED BY A
NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING
LABORATORY.

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE TYPE & AMOUNT: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULE DIMENSIONS: (L/W/H) 83"/41.25"/1.6"
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]
INTERCONNECTION METHOD: LINE SIDE TAP

20 MODULES-GROUND MOUNTED - 9.000 kW DC, 7.600 kW AC, 840 WILD OAK TRAIL, MAPLE PLAIN, MN  55359 (LAT.  44.9929, LONG.  -93.7037)

FR
ON

T 
OF

 H
OU

SE

W
ILD

 O
AK

 T
RA

IL

M

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN
SERVICE PANEL TIED TO

EXTERIOR UTILITY METER #N/A

GROUND ARRAY #1
(20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W

SLOPE: 35°
AZIM.: 180°

GOVERNING CODES
ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING CODES
· 2020 MINNESOTA BUILDING CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  RESIDENTIAL CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  FIRE CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  MECHANICAL CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA PLUMBING CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA  REHABILITATION CODE
· 2020 MINNESOTA ELECTRICAL CODE

MAIN
HOUSE

GARAGE

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

BARN



35'-2"

N

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

PV 1.0

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

EQUIPMENT
LAYOUT & SITE

PLAN

GROUND SECTION(S)

SYSTEM LEGEND

= EXTERIOR RUN

= RACKING SYSTEM

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE TYPE & AMOUNT: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULE DIMENSIONS: (L/W/H) 83"/41.25"/1.6"
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS: MODULE, ARRAY WEIGHT (LOAD CALC'S)
Number of Modules 20
Module Weight 55.12 LBS
Total Module (Array) Weight 1,102.4 LBS
Module Area (83"x41.25") 23.78 SqFt
Total Array Area 488 SqFt
Distributed Load
(Total Array Weight / Total Array Area)

2.26 Per SqFt

= CONDUIT JUNCTION BOXJB

MODULE - 20
SLOPE - 35°
AZIMUTH - 180°

GA #01

JB

M

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN SERVICE PANEL &
POINT OF INTERCONNECTION. TIED TO
EXTERIOR UTILITY METER #N/A

GA#01

~100' TRENCHED CONDUIT,
MINIMUM 18" DEEP IN PVC

NEW SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]
INVERTER

AC

NEW PV AC DISCONNECT GROUPED WITH SERVICE
EQUIPMENT (VISIBLE, LOCKABLE, LABELED)

EXISTING  INTERIOR MAIN SERVICE PANEL &
POINT OF INTERCONNECTION. TIED TO EXTERIOR
UTILITY METER #N/A.

NEW PHOTOVOLTAIC UTILITY DISCONNECT
SWITCH. LOCATED WITHIN 10' OF MSP.

M

AC

NEW 01 - SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V] INVERTERSI

20 NEW HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
MODULES

STRING #2 - 10 MODULES

STRING #1 - 10 MODULES

STRING(S)

I

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

1 SITE PLAN
PV 1.0

FRONT OF HOUSE

W
ILD OAK TRAIL

P

NEW PV METER

NEW PHOTOVOLTAIC UTILITY PRODUCTION METER.P



CHANNEL POST BELOW
(TYPICAL)

SOLAR MODULE
(TYPICAL)

VA
RI

ES
 W

IT
H 

TI
LT

 A
NG

LE

PURLIN BEHIND
(TYPICAL)

13'-4''
C/C POST
SPACING16'-10''

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

S 1.1

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

MOUNT DETAIL

SCALE: NTS

1  PV RACKING PLAN VIEW
S 1.1

SCALE: NTS

1 RACKING FRONT SIDE  DETAIL
S 1.1



SOLAR MODULE
(TYPICAL)

CHANNEL POST
(TYPICAL)

PURLIN
(TYPICAL)

35°

2'-
10

"

VA
RI

ES
 W

IT
H 

TI
LT

 A
NG

LE

JACK CONNECTIONS

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

MANUALLY ADJUSTAVLE JACK

TRUSS TO POST CONNECTION

5/8'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

PURLIN OVERLAP CONNECTION PURLIN TO TRUSS CONNECTION

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT

1/2'' DIA SERRATED FLANGE
BOLT ANFD NUT
1) - BOTTOM FLANGE
1) - WEB

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

S 1.2

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

MOUNT DETAIL

SCALE: NTS

1  PV RACKING BACK VIEW
S 1.2

SCALE: NTS

2  PV RACKING SIDE VIEW
S 1.2



Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.1

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

3-LINE
DIAGRAM

1

=

ACDC

2

- + - + - +

2 101

- + - +

+-

- +

2 101

(N) JUNCTION BOX
600 V, NEMA 4

UL LISTED

(N) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V] INVERTER
OUTPUT: 240VAC, 32A, RATED POWER 7600W

99% CEC WEIGHTED EFFICIENCY
NEMA 3R, UL LISTED, INTERNAL GFDI
WITH INTEGRATED DC DISCONNECT

20 NEW HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W MODULES.

Rooftop conductor ampacities designed in compliance with
art. 690.8, Tables 310.15(B)(2)(a), 310.15(B)(3)(a),
310.15(B)(3)(c), 310.15(B)(16), Chapter 9 Table 4, 5, & 9.
Location specific temperature obtained from ASHRAE 2017
data tables

AMBIENT TEMP (HIGH TEMP 2%)
RECORD LOW TEMP -27°C

32°C

CONDUIT HEIGHT 0.5"

ROOF TOP TEMP 54°C

CONDUCTOR TEMPERATURE RATE 90°C

INVERTER CHARACTERISTICS - SOLAREDGE SE 7600H-US
MAX OUTPUT POWER 7600 W
SYSTEM OPERATING VOLTAGE 400 V
MAX CONTINOUS OUTPUT CURRENT 32 A
MAX INPUT VOLTAGE 480 V
SYSTEM SHORT CIRCUIT CURRENT 15 A
MAX EFFICIENCY 99 %

PV MODULE RATING @ STC
MANUFACTURER
MAX. POWER-POINT CURRENT (IMP)

MAX. POWER-POINT VOLTAGE (VMP)

OPEN-CIRCUIT VOLTAGE (VOC)

SHORT-CIRCUIT CURRENT (ISC)

10.68 AMPS

42.16 VOLTS

50.03 VOLTS

11.29 AMPS
NOM. MAX. POWER AT STC (PMAX)

MAX. SYSTEM VOLTAGE

VOC TEMPERATURE COEFFICIENT

450 WATT

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM
DC SYSTEM SIZE (WATTS)

NOMINAL AC VOLTAGE 240V

9000W
AC SYSTEM SIZE (WATTS) 7600W

TOTAL NUMBER OF MODULES 20

WIRE
QTY

WIRE
TAG # CONDUIT WIRE TYPE CONDUIT

FILL:
TEMP

RATING:
WIRE
AMP

TEMP
DE-RATE:

WIRE
OCP:

MAX SYSTEM
VOLTAGE

GRND
SIZE

WIRE
GAUGE:

TERMINAL
75°C RATING: NEC: MAX

AMPS

x x = x =1.25 18.75A28.80A 25A90°C

35A =1.25 18.75Ax x = 24.32A90°C

65A x =1.25 40.00Ax x = 61.10A75°C

30A#12

40A#10

65A#6

1" PVC 40

3/4" PVC
80

WIRE FROM - -

JUNCTION BOX TO
INVERTER

INVERTER TO MSP

ARRAY TO
JUNCTION BOX1

2
3

PV WIRE

THWN-2

THWN-2

4 0.80

3 1.00

IN AIR

32A

x = GRND WIRE
TYPE

480V

480V

240V

#6

#6

#8

SBC

THWN-2

THWN-2

0.96

0.76

0.94

SYSTEM SIZE: 9.000 kW DC
7.600 kW AC

MODULE: (20) HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W
INVERTER: (01) SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V]

HELIENE HSPE-144HC-M6 450W

4 NA

1500V

-0.30° %/°C

TRENCH CONDUIT

x

OPTMIZER
CURRENT

15A

15A

G

N

200A

M

(E) LOADS

G

N

3 EXISTING GROUNDING
ELECTRODE SYSTEM

(N) LOCKABLE BLADE
TYPE FUSIBLE AC

DISCONNECT NEMA 3R
60A-2P 120/240VAC

3

EXISTING  240V/200A BUS BAR RATING,
MAIN SERVICE PANEL, SINGLE PHASE,

WITH A 200A MAIN DISCONNECT
UTILITY COMPANY - WRIGHT HENNEPIN

UTILITY METER

LINE SIDE TAP

POINT OF INTERCONNECT, LINE SIDE

(E) LOADS

40A FUSES

M

(N) 125A
PHOTOVOLTAIC METER

3

 (UTILITY METER AT THE POLE BARN)

M

SERVICE METER WITH
DETENT

GENERAL SERVICE
METER WITH DETENT



Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.2

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

NOTES

SITE NOTES:
1. A LADDER WILL BE IN PLACE FOR INSPECTION IN COMPLIANCE WITH OSHA

REGULATIONS.
2. THE PV MODULES ARE CONSIDERED NON-COMBUSTIBLE AND THIS SYSTEM IS A

UTILITY INTERACTIVE SYSTEM WITH NO STORAGE BATTERIES.
3. THE SOLAR PV INSTALLATION WILL NOT OBSTRUCT ANY PLUMBING, MECHANICAL,

OR BUILDING ROOF VENTS.
4. PROPER ACCESS AND WORKING CLEARANCE AROUND EXISTING AND PROPOSED

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AS PER SECTION NEC 110.26.
5. ROOF COVERINGS SHALL BE DESIGNED, INSTALLED, AND MAINTAINED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THIS CODE AND THE APPROVED MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS SUCH THAT THE ROOF COVERING SERVES TO PROTECT THE
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE.

EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS:
1. ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET MINIMUM SETBACKS AS REQUIRED BY NEC 110.26.
2. WIRING SYSTEMS INSTALLED IN DIRECT SUNLIGHT MUST BE RATED FOR EXPECTED

OPERATING TEMPERATURE AS SPECIFIED BY NEC 690.31 (A),(C) AND NEC TABLES
310.15 (B)(2)(A) AND 310.15 (B)(3)(C).

3. JUNCTION AND PULL BOXES PERMITTED INSTALLED UNDER PV MODULES
ACCORDING TO NEC 690.34.

4. ADDITIONAL AC DISCONNECT(S) SHALL BE PROVIDED WHERE THE INVERTER IS NOT
WITHIN SIGHT OF THE AC SERVICING DISCONNECT. 2.2.6 ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE
INSTALLED ACCESSIBLE TO QUALIFIED PERSONNEL ACCORDING TO NEC
APPLICABLE CODES.

5. ALL COMPONENTS ARE LISTED FOR THEIR PURPOSE AND RATED FOR OUTDOOR
USAGE WHEN APPROPRIATE.

STRUCTURAL NOTES:
1. RACKING SYSTEM & PV ARRAY WILL BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO

CODE-COMPLIANT INSTALLATION MANUAL. TOP CLAMPS REQUIRE A DESIGNATED
SPACE BETWEEN MODULES, AND RAILS MUST ALSO EXTEND A MINIMUM DISTANCE
BEYOND EITHER EDGE OF THE ARRAY / SUBARRAY, ACCORDING TO RAI
MANUFACTURER’S INSTRUCTIONS.

2. JUNCTION BOX WILL BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURERS' SPECIFICATIONS. IF
ROOF-PENETRATING TYPE, IT SHALL BE FLASHED & SEALED PER LOCAL
REQUIREMENTS.

3. ROOFTOP PENETRATIONS FOR PV RACEWAY WILL BE COMPLETED AND SEALED W/
APPROVED CHEMICAL SEALANT PER CODE BY A LICENSED CONTRACTOR.

4. ALL PV RELATED ROOF ATTACHMENTS TO BE SPACED NO GREATER THAN THE
SPAN DISTANCE SPECIFIED BY THE RACKING MANUFACTURER. 2.3.6 WHEN
POSSIBLE, ALL PV RELATED RACKING ATTACHMENTS WILL BE STAGGERED
AMONGST THE ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS.

WIRING & CONDUIT NOTES:
1. ALL CONDUIT AND WIRE WILL BE LISTED AND APPROVED FOR THEIR PURPOSE.

CONDUIT AND WIRE SPECIFICATIONS ARE BASED ON MINIMUM CODE
REQUIREMENTS AND ARE NOT MEANT TO LIMIT UP-SIZING.

2. CONDUCTORS SIZED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.8, NEC 690.7.
3. VOLTAGE DROP LIMITED TO 1.5%.
4. DC WIRING LIMITED TO MODULE FOOTPRINT.  MICRO INVERTER WIRING

SYSTEMS SHALL BE LOCATED AND SECURED UNDER THE ARRAY W/ SUITABLE
WIRING CLIPS.

5. AC CONDUCTORS COLORED OR MARKED AS FOLLOWS: PHASE A OR L1- BLACK
PHASE B OR L2- RED, OR OTHER CONVENTION IF THREE PHASE PHASE C OR L3-
BLUE, YELLOW, ORANGE**, OR OTHER CONVENTION NEUTRAL- WHITE OR GREY
IN 4-WIRE DELTA CONNECTED SYSTEMS THE PHASE WITH HIGHER VOLTAGE TO
BE MARKED ORANGE [NEC 110.15].

GROUNDING NOTES:
1. GROUNDING SYSTEM COMPONENTS SHALL BE LISTED FOR THEIR PURPOSE, AND

GROUNDING DEVISES EXPOSED TO THE ELEMENTS SHALL BE RATED FOR SUCH
USE.

2. PV EQUIPMENT SHALL BE GROUNDED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.43 AND MINIMUM
NEC TABLE 250.122.

3. METAL PARTS OF MODULE FRAMES, MODULE RACKING, AND ENCLOSURES
CONSIDERED GROUNDED IN ACCORD WITH 250.134 AND 250.136(A).

4. EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTORS SHALL BE SIZED ACCORDING TO NEC
690.45 AND MICRO INVERTER MANUFACTURERS’ INSTRUCTIONS.

5. EACH MODULE WILL BE GROUNDED USING WEEB GROUNDING CLIPS AS SHOWN IN
MANUFACTURER DOCUMENTATION AND APPROVED BY THE AHJ.  IF WEEBS ARE
NOT USED, MODULE GROUNDING LUGS MUST BE INSTALLED AT THE SPECIFIED
GROUNDING LUG HOLES PER THE MANUFACTURERS' INSTALLATION
REQUIREMENTS.

6. THE GROUNDING CONNECTION TO A MODULE SHALL BE ARRANGED SUCH THAT
THE REMOVAL OFA MODULE DOES NOT INTERRUPT A GROUNDING CONDUCTOR TO
ANOTHER MODULE.

7. GROUNDING AND BONDING CONDUCTORS, IF INSULATED, SHALL BE COLORED
GREEN OR MARKED GREEN IF #4 AWG OR LARGER [NEC 250.119]

8. THE GROUNDING ELECTRODE SYSTEM COMPLIES WITH NEC 690.47 AND NEC 250.50
THROUGH 250.106. IF EXISTING SYSTEM IS INACCESSIBLE, OR INADEQUATE, A
GROUNDING ELECTRODE SYSTEM PROVIDED ACCORDING TO NEC 250, NEC 690.47
AND AHJ.

9. GROUND-FAULT DETECTION SHALL COMPLY WITH NEC 690.41(B)(1) AND (2) TO
REDUCE FIRE HAZARDS

DISCONNECTION AND OVER-CURRENT PROTECTION NOTES:
1. DISCONNECTING SWITCHES SHALL BE WIRED SUCH THAT WHEN THE SWITCH IS

OPENED THE CONDUCTORS REMAINING ENERGIZED ARE CONNECTED TO THE
TERMINALS MARKED “LINE SIDE” (TYPICALLY THE UPPER TERMINALS).

2. DISCONNECTS TO BE ACCESSIBLE TO QUALIFIED UTILITY PERSONNEL, BE
LOCKABLE, AND BE A VISIBLE-BREAK SWITCH

3. PV SYSTEM CIRCUITS INSTALLED ON OR IN BUILDINGS SHALL INCLUDE A RAPID
SHUTDOWN FUNCTION TO REDUCE SHOCK HAZARD FOR EMERGENCY
RESPONDERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 690.12(A) THROUGH (D).

4. ALL OCPD RATINGS AND TYPES SPECIFIED ACCORDING TO NEC 690.8, 690.9, AND
240.

5. MICRO INVERTER BRANCHES CONNECTED TO A SINGLE BREAKER OR GROUPED
FUSES IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 110.3(B).

6. IF REQUIRED BY AHJ, SYSTEM WILL INCLUDE ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT PROTECTION
ACCORDING TO NEC 690.11 AND UL1699B.

INTERCONNECTION NOTES:
1. LOAD-SIDE INTERCONNECTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH [NEC 705.12 (B)]
2. THE SUM OF THE UTILITY OCPD AND INVERTER CONTINUOUS OUTPUT MAY NOT

EXCEED 120% OF BUS BAR RATING [NEC 705.12(D)(2)(3)].
3. THE SUM OF 125 PERCENT OF THE POWER SOURCE(S) OUTPUT CIRCUIT CURRENT

AND THE RATING OF THE OVERCURRENT DEVICE PROTECTING THE BUS BAR
SHALL NOT EXCEED 120 PERCENT OF THE AMPACITY OF THE BUS BAR, PV
DEDICATED BACKFEED BREAKERS MUST BE LOCATED OPPOSITE END OF THE BUS
FROM THE UTILITY SOURCE OCPD [NEC 705.12(B)(2)(3)].

4. AT MULTIPLE ELECTRIC POWER SOURCES OUTPUT COMBINER PANEL, TOTAL
RATING OF ALL OVERCURRENT DEVICES SHALL NOT EXCEED AMPACITY OF
BUSBAR. HOWEVER, THE COMBINED OVERCURRENT DEVICE MAY BE EXCLUDED
ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (B)(2)(3)(C).

5. FEEDER TAP INTERCONNECTION (LOADSIDE) ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (B)(2)(1)
6. SUPPLY SIDE TAP INTERCONNECTION ACCORDING TO NEC 705.12 (A) WITH

SERVICE ENTRANCE CONDUCTORS IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEC 230.42
2.7.8BACKFEEDING BREAKER FOR ELECTRIC POWER SOURCES OUTPUT IS EXEMPT
FROM ADDITIONAL FASTENING [NEC 705.12 (B)(5)].



N

Rev

DA
VE

 V
AN

DE
NE

IN
DE

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

DateDescription

REVISIONS

Signature with Seal

Project Name &
Address

Sheet Size

Sheet Number

ANSI B
11" X 17"

E 1.3

Sheet Name

DRAWN BY

2349 WILLIS MILLER DR
HUDSON , WISCONSIN,

54016
(612) 382-7996

LICENCE NO # EA775799

84
0 W

ILD
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL,

MA
PL

E 
PL

AI
N,

 M
N 

 55
35

9

WARNING
LABELS

CAUTION:
POWER TO THIS BUILDING IS ALSO SUPPLIED

FROM THE FOLLOWING SOURCES WITH
DISCONNECTS LOCATED AS SHOWN

W
ILD OAK TRAIL

AC
M

(20) PV MODULES

MAIN SERVICE PANEL

I

INVERTER

UTILITY METER
AC DISCONNECT

P

PV METER

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEMS

(PER CODE: NEC 690)

A

SOLAR PV SYSTEM
EQUIPPED WITH RAPID

SHUTDOWN
TURN RAPID
SHUTDOWN

SWITCH TO THE
"OFF" POSITION TO

SHUTDOWN PV
SYSTEM AND

REDUCE
SHOCK HAZARD
IN THE ARRAY

SOLAR
ELECTRIC

PV PANELS

AT INVERTER [IFC 605.11.3.1(1) & 690.56(C)]
PER CODE: NEC 2020

ELECTRICAL SHOCK HAZARD

TERMINALS ON BOTH LINE AND
LOAD SIDES MAY BE ENERGIZED

IN THE OPEN POSITION

WARNING!

LABEL LOCATION:
WHERE ALL TERMINALS OF THE DISCONNECTING MEANS MAY BE
ENERGIZED IN THE OPEN POSITION, A WARNING SIGN SHALL BE
MOUNTED ON OR ADJACENT TO THE DISCONNECTING MEANS.
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020:
NEC 706.15(C)(4) and NEC 690.13(B)

WARNING! DUAL POWER SOURCE
SECOND SOURCE IS PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM

LABEL LOCATION:
PRODUCTION / NET METER (BI-DIRECTIONAL)
NEC: 2020
NEC 690.59, 705.12(D)(3)

WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC
POWER SOURCE

MAIN PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEM DISCONNECT

LABEL LOCATION:  MAIN SERVICE DISCONNECT, NEC 2020, 690.13(B)

POWER SOURCE OUTPUT
CONNECTION. DO NOT RELOCATE

THIS OVERCURRENT DEVICE.

WARNING!

LABEL LOCATION:
MAIN SERVICE DISCONNECT
NEC: 2020, 705.12(B)(3)(2)

LABEL LOCATION:
PERMANENT WARNING LABELS SHALL BE APPLIED
TO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT, AC DISCONNECT
NEC: 2020, PER CODE: 705.12(B)(3)(3)

 PHOTOVOLTAIC

AC DISCONNECT
LABEL LOCATION:
AC DISCONNECT, NEC: 2020, (NEC 690.13(B)

 PHOTOVOLTAIC

DC DISCONNECT
LABEL LOCATION:
DC DISCONNECT
(NEC 690.13(B)

M

A
C

IN
V

E
R

T
E

R

J/B

PV ARRAY

WARNING: PHOTOVOLTAIC
POWER SOURCE

LABEL LOCATION :
EXPOSED RACEWAY, CABLE TRAYS, JUNCTION BOX
NEC: 2020, PER CODE: NEC 690.31(D)(2)

LABEL LOCATION:
AC DISCONNECT, POINT OF INTERCONNECTION
NEC: 2020
(PER CODE: NEC 690.54)

UTILITY FUSED AC DISCONNECT
PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM AC DISCONNECT

RATED AC OPERATING CURRENT 32 AMPS
AC NOMINAL OPERATING VOLTAGE 240 VOLTS

PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM
EQUIPPED WITH

RAPID SHUTDOWN
LABEL LOCATION:
UTILITY SERVICE ENTRANCE/METER, INVERTER/DC DISCONNECT IF REQUIRED BY
LOCAL AHJ, OR OTHER LOCATIONS AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL AHJ.
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020: ARTICLE 690.56(C)

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEMS

(PER CODE: NEC 690)

PHOTOVOLTAIC DC DISCONNECT
MAXIMUM SYSTEM VOLTAGE:
MAXIMUM CIRCUIT CURRENT:
MAX RATED OUTPUT CURRENT OF THE CHARGE
CONTROLLER OR DC-TO-DC CONVERTER (IF INSTALLED):

VDC
ADC

ADC

480

20

15

INVERTER #1 (SOLAR EDGE SE7600H-US [240V])

LABEL LOCATION:
INVERTER(S), DC DISCONNECT(S).
PER CODE(S): NEC 2020,
PER CODE: 690.53

THIS EQUIPMENT FED BY MULTIPLE
SOURCES, TOTAL RATING OF ALL

OVERCURRENT DEVICES,
EXCLUDING MAIN SUPPLY

OVERCURRENT DEVICE, SHALL NOT
EXCEED AMPACITY OF BUSBAR.

WARNING! M
PHOTOVOLTAIC
SYSTEM METER















8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Lot Line Rearrangement for the  

Property Located at the East End of Burr Oak Lane 
 

To: Planning Commission 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: August 16, 2022 
Applicant/Owner: John Peterson/ Jean P & A Sterner Etal 

Location: 8910 Highway 12  
 

Request: 
John Peterson (Applicant) and Jean P & A Sterner Etal (Owner) requests that the City consider 
the following action for the properties generally located at 8910 US Hwy 12, Independence, MN 
(PID No’s. 07-118-24-41-0003 and 07-118-24-42-0004): 
 

a. A minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement which would adjust the line 
that separates the two properties and cleans up a property line discrepancy along the 
north property line.   
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is located just west of Lake Haughey Road and North of Hwy 12.  There 
are two principal structures located on the 8910 property along with several detached accessory 
structures.  There are no structures on the westerly parcel (07-118-24-42-0004).  The property 
has the following site characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 8910 Highway 12 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
  

Acreage (Before Parcel A - north): 38.70  Acreage (After Parcel A - north): 41.60  
 Acreage (Before Parcel A - south): 18.00  Acreage (After Parcel A - south): 18.00 
 

Acreage (Before Parcel B - north): 42.95  Acreage (Before Parcel A - north): 40.19  
 Acreage (Before Parcel B - south): 14.39  Acreage (Before Parcel B - south): 14.39 
  



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

 
 

Aerial of Subject Properties 

  
 

Discussion: 
The applicant is seeking a minor subdivision to adjust several lot lines and correct a property line 
discrepancy.  The proposed lot line rearrangement would adjust the north/south property line that 
runs between the two subject properties.  The line would move to the west north of the railroad 
tracks so that it aligns with the north/south line that runs south of the railroad tracks.  In addition 
to this realignment, the applicant has noted that there is a piece of property to the north of the 
subject Parcel A that should be incorporated into the property.  This can be seen on Hennepin 
County GIS.  The applicant is proposing to adjust the north property line so that it incorporates 
the property that has historically been included within the fenced portion of the subject property.   
 
The proposed lot line adjustments will add approximately 3 acres to the easterly property (Parcel 
A) and reduce the westerly property by the same.  Both properties are under the control of the 
applicant’s family members and there is agreement relating to the proposed adjustment with the 
adjacent property owner to the north. 

SUBJECT SITES 



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

 
 
 
Summary: 
The proposed lot line rearrangement is generally in keeping with the City’s zoning and subdivision 
regulations.  The City reviewed the proposed subdivision and did not find any potential issues 

Property Line Adjustment 
(north/south)

Property Line Adjustment 
(east/west) 



8910	Highway	12	Minor	Subdivision–	Planning	Commission	
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

relating to the requested minor subdivision.  No new lots are being created and both lots are 
conforming in both the before and after conditions.  The City is not requesting any additional 
drainage and utility easements due to the minimal change and overall size of the subject parcels.  
The proposed minor subdivision appears to meet all of the applicable standards of the City’s zoning 
and subdivision ordinance.   
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed minor subdivision.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission for the requested minor subdivision 
with the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed minor subdivision for a lot line rearrangement meets all applicable criteria 
and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations of 
the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

minor subdivision. 
  

3. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 
within six (6) months of approval. 
 
 
 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Before and After Subdivision Survey  
 

 






	Vandeneinde-_Plans_V3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-PV 0.0
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-PV 1.0
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-S 1.1
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-S 1.2
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.1
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.2
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-E 1.3
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-01
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-02
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-03
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-04
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-05
	Vandeneinde _Plans_V3-06



